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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors and Stockholder of Aqua New Jersey, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Aqua New Jersey, Inc. (the "Company", a wholly owned
subsidiary of Aqua America, Inc.), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related
statements of income, of cash flows and of common stockholder's equity for the years then ended.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Aqua New Jersey, Inc. at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, and the results of its operations and its cash flows
for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

March 31, 2015

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Two Commerce Square, Suite 1700, 2001 Market Street, Philadelphia, PA 19103-7042
T: (267) 330 3000, F: (267) 330-3300, www.pwc.com/us
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Assets 2014 2013 Liabilities and Common Stockholder's Equity 2014 2013

Utility plant, net of accumulated depreciation 204,611$ 191,057$ Common stockholder's equity:
Construction work-in-progress 1,264 1,585 Common stock, $5 par value, 800,000
Utility plant acquisition adjustment, net of shares authorized, 720,625 shares

accumulated amortization 1,156 1,146 issued and outstanding, respectively 3,603$ 3,603$
Capital in excess of par value 30,742 31,869

Net utility plant 207,031 193,788 Retained earnings 37,748 32,965

Total common stockholder's equity 72,093 68,437

Long-term debt, excluding current portion 56,907 55,149
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 300 392 Current liabilities:
Accounts receivable, less allowance for Current portion of long-term debt 564 554
doubtful accounts of $86 and $107 3,059 3,338 Accounts payable 685 129

Accounts receivable-affiliates 603 665 Accounts payable-affiliates 330 2,414
Unbilled revenues 1,854 1,531 Accrued interest 173 295
Materials and supplies 1,134 879 Taxes payable 1,060 193
Deferred Tax Asset 16 - Deferred tax liability - 115
Prepayments and other current assets 410 403 Other current liabilities 1,528 1,771

Total current assets 7,376 7,208 Total current liabilities 4,340 5,471

Deferred credits and other non-current liabilities:
Deferred charges and other non-current assets: Customers' advances for construction 22,383 18,151
Debt issuance expense, net of Deferred income taxes 23,266 19,988

accumulated amortization 1,869 1,980 Regulatory liabilities 3,418 3,029
Regulatory assets 1,795 1,556 Other non-current liabilities 46 310
Funds restricted for construction activity 47 47
Goodwill 237 237 Total deferred credits and other
Other non-current assets 345 308 non-current liabilities 49,113 41,478
Total deferred charges and other
non-current assets 4,293 4,128 Contributions in aid of construction 36,247 34,589

218,700$ 205,124$ 218,700$ 205,124$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2014 2013

Operating revenues 39,346$ 37,382$
Operating expenses:
Operations and maintenance 14,345 14,727
Depreciation 6,432 5,977
Amortization 462 712
Taxes other than income taxes 5,594 5,581

Total operating expenses 26,833 26,997

Operating income 12,513 10,385

Other expense:
Interest on long-term debt 2,904 2,866
Allowance for funds used during construction (150) (90)

Income before income taxes 9,759 7,609
Provision for income taxes 3,526 2,617

Net income 6,233$ 4,992$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2014 2013

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income 6,233$ 4,992$

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 6,894 6,689
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits 3,459 1,709
Provision for doubtful accounts 141 76
Stock based compensation 65 69
Allowance for funds used during construction (113) (67)

Change in current assets and current liabilities:
Receivables, unbilled revenues, materials and supplies

and prepayments (1,271) 12,685
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 529 (7,892)
Accrued interest (122) (6)
Other (1,798) (1,774)

Net cash provided by operating activities 14,017 16,481

Cash flows from investing activities:
Construction expenditures (11,869) (14,485)
Increase in funds restricted for construction activity - 515
Allowance for funds used during construction (37) (23)

Net cash used in investing activities (11,906) (13,993)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Customers' advances and contributions in aid of

construction 334 50
Repayments of customers' advances (533) (620)
Proceeds from long-term debt 7,000 -
Debt issuance costs paid (3) (49)
Repayments of long-term debt (7,551) (481)
Dividends paid - common stock (1,450) (2,275)

Net cash used in financing activities (2,203) (3,375)
Net change in cash (92) (887)

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 392 1,279
Cash and cash equivalents end of year 300$ 392$

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized, was $2,872 and $2,807 in 2014 and 2013, respectively.
Cash paid for income taxes was $0 and $0 in 2014 and 2013, respectively.
See Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Customers' Advances for Contruction and

Constributions in Aid of Construction.
Non-cash financing activity - Return of capital contribution from Parent was $1,193 in 2014.

Capital contributions from Parent was $13,361 in 2013.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Capital Total Common

Common in excess Retained Stockholder's

Stock of par value Earnings Equity

Balance at December 31, 2012 3,603 18,439 30,248 52,290

Net income - - 4,992 4,992

Common stock dividends, $3.16 per share - - (2,275) (2,275)

Stock based compensation - 69 - 69

Capital contribution to

Aqua America, Inc. - 13,361 13,361

Balance at December 31, 2013 3,603 31,869 32,965 68,437

Net income - - 6,233 6,233

Common stock dividends, $2.01 per share - - (1,450) (1,450)

Stock based compensation - 65 - 65

Return of Capital Contributions from

Aqua America, Inc. - (1,192) (1,192)

Balance at December 31, 2014 3,603$ 30,742$ 37,748$ 72,093$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

(In thousands of dollars)
Years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations

Aqua New Jersey, Inc. (the “Company”) is a regulated public utility that supplies water to residential,
commercial and industrial customers. All of the Company's customers are located in New Jersey. The Company is also
engaged in providing wastewater services. No single customer accounted for more than one percent of the Company's
operating revenues in 2014 or 2013. The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Aqua America, Inc. (the “Parent”).

Basis of Presentation

The Company’s financial statements are presented in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

The Company has evaluated the period from December 31, 2014, the date of the financial statements,
through March 31, 2015, the date the financial statements were available for issuance, for subsequent events and
determined that no material subsequent events occurred that would affect the information presented in these financial
statements or require additional disclosure.

Use of Estimates in Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Recognition of Revenues

Operating revenues include amounts billed to customers on a cycle basis and unbilled amounts based on
estimated usage from the latest billing to the end of the accounting period.

Regulation

As a regulated public water utility, the Company is subject to regulation by the New Jersey Board of Public
Utilities (“NJBPU”), which has jurisdiction with respect to rates, service, accounting procedures, acquisitions and
other matters. The Company defers certain costs and credits as regulatory assets and liabilities when it is probable that
such amounts will be recognized in the rate making process in a period different from the period in which they would
have been reflected in income by an unregulated company.

Utility Plant and Depreciation

Utility plant is stated at cost which includes contracted cost, direct labor and fringe benefits, materials,
overheads, and for certain utility plant, an allowance for the cost of funds used during construction. Water systems
acquired are recorded at estimated original cost when first devoted to utility service and the applicable depreciation is
recorded in accumulated depreciation.

Utility plant acquisition adjustments represent the difference between the estimated original cost, less
applicable depreciation, and the purchase price of utility plant assets acquired through business acquisitions.
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Notes to Financial Statements

(In thousands of dollars)
Years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Utility Plant and Depreciation (continued)

Utility plant included a positive acquisition adjustment balance of $1,156 and $1,146 in 2014 and 2013,
respectively, of which $1,675 and $1,685 were the 2014 and 2013 respective unamortized balances of the net negative
utility plant acquisition adjustment which is being amortized over a range of 2 to 24 years. There was a positive
acquisition adjustment balance of $2,831 and $2,831 in 2014 and 2013, respectively, not currently subject to
amortization.

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs, including minor renewals and betterments, are charged to
operating expenses in accordance with the uniform system of accounts prescribed by the NJBPU. The cost of new
units of property and betterments are capitalized.

When units of utility property are replaced, retired or abandoned, the recorded value thereof is credited to the
asset account and such value, together with the net cost of removal, is charged to accumulated depreciation. The
Company recovers retirement costs through rates during the life of the associated asset and before the costs are
incurred. These amounts result in a regulatory liability being reported based on the amounts previously recovered
through customer rates.

The cost of software upgrades and enhancements are capitalized if they result in added functionality which
enable the software to perform tasks it was previously incapable of performing. Certain information technology costs
associated with major system installations, conversions and improvements, such as software training, data conversion
and business process reengineering costs, are deferred as a regulatory asset if the Company expects to recover these
costs in future rates. If these costs are not deferred then they are charged to operating expenses when incurred. As of
December 31, 2014, $292 of costs have been incurred and deferred, since the last rate proceeding, as a regulatory
asset, and the deferral is reported as a component of net property, plant and equipment.

The straight-line remaining life method is used to compute depreciation on utility plant. The straight-line
method is used with respect to transportation and mechanical equipment. Depreciation is recorded over the estimated
useful lives of the assets which range from 6 to 83 years for utility plant.

Long-lived assets of the Company, which consist primarily of utility plant in service and regulatory assets, are
reviewed for impairment when changes in circumstances or events occur. There has been no change in circumstances or
events that have occurred that require adjustments to the carrying values of these assets.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, property, plant and equipment additions purchased at the period end,
but not yet paid for are $891 and $100, respectively.

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction

The allowance for funds used during construction ("AFUDC") is a non-cash credit to income which
represents the estimated cost of funds used to finance the construction of utility plant. AFUDC is applied to
construction projects requiring more than one month to complete. No AFUDC is applied to projects funded by
customer advances for construction or contributions in aid of construction. AFUDC includes the net cost of
borrowed funds and a rate of return on other funds when used, and is recovered through water rates as the utility
plant is depreciated. The amount of AFUDC related to equity funds was $113 and $67 in 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which
are not restricted for construction activity, to be cash equivalents.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts is the
Company’s best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in our existing accounts receivable, and is
determined based on historical write-off experience and the aging of account balances. The Company reviews the
allowance for doubtful accounts quarterly. When utility customers request extended payment terms, credit is extended
based on regulatory guidelines and collateral is not required.

Deferred Charges

Deferred bond issuance expenses are amortized over the life of the related issuance.

Funds Restricted for Construction Activity

The proceeds received from certain financings for construction and capital improvement of utility facilities
are held in escrow until the designated expenditures are incurred. These amounts are reported as funds restricted for
construction activity and are expected to be released over time as the capital projects are funded.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess cost over the fair value of net tangible and identifiable intangible assets
acquired through acquisitions. Goodwill is not amortized but is tested for impairment annually, or more often, if
circumstances indicate a possible impairment may exist. When testing goodwill for impairment, we may assess
qualitative factors to determine whether it’s more likely than not that the fair value of our reporting unit is less than its
carrying amount. Alternatively, we may bypass this qualitative assessment and perform a quantitative goodwill
impairment test. If we perform a quantitative test and determine that the reporting unit’s fair value is less than its
carrying amount, we would determine the reporting unit’s implied fair value of its goodwill and compare it with the
carrying amount of its goodwill to measure such impairment. The Company tested the goodwill attributable for its
reporting unit for impairment as of July 31, 2014, in conjunction with the timing of its annual strategic business plan,
and concluded that the reporting unit’s estimated fair value exceeded its carrying amount, indicating that the
Company’s goodwill was not impaired.

Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI”)

For the periods presented, the Company does not have any OCI and therefore, comprehensive income equals
net income. In addition, there is no accumulated comprehensive income.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for certain income and expense items in different time periods for financial reporting
than for tax reporting purposes. Deferred income taxes are provided on the temporary differences between the tax
basis of the assets and liabilities and the amounts at which they are carried in the financial statements. These deferred
income taxes are based on the enacted tax rates expected to be in effect when such temporary differences are
projected to reverse.

The Company's earnings are included with those of the Parent and affiliated companies for purposes of filing
a consolidated Federal income tax return. The allocation of the Federal income tax to the Company is computed on a
stand-alone basis. The liability for Federal income taxes is remitted to the Parent.

Investment tax credits have been deferred and are amortized over the estimated useful lives of the related
properties.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Judgment is required in evaluating the Company’s federal and state tax positions. Despite management’s
belief that the Company’s tax return positions are fully supportable, the Company may establish reserves when it
believes that certain tax positions are likely to be challenged and it may not fully prevail in these challenges. The
Company’s provision for income taxes includes interest, penalties and reserves for uncertain tax positions.

In 2014, the Company changed its tax method of accounting for qualifying utility system repairs effective
with the tax year ended December 31, 2014. The tax accounting method was changed on qualifying utility asset
improvement costs (the “Repair Change”) which reduces the amount of taxes currently payable.

Customers' Advances for Construction

Water mains or, in some instances, cash advances to reimburse the Company its costs to construct water mains, are
contributed to the Company by customers, real estate developers and builders in order to extend water service to their
properties. The value of these contributions is recorded as customers’ advances for construction. The Company makes
refunds on these advances over a specific period of time based on operating revenues related to the main or as new
customers are connected to and take service from the main. After all refunds are made, any remaining balance is transferred
to contributions in aid of construction. Customers’ advances for construction non-cash property has been received,
generally from developers, of $5,353 in 2014 and $280 in 2013. Additionally, the Company recorded an adjustment to
Customers’ Advances for Construction to recognize $7,891 of advances or contributions received in periods prior to
2013.

Contributions in Aid of Construction

Contributions in aid of construction include direct non-refundable contributions and the portion of
customers' advances for construction that have become non-refundable. Contributions in aid of construction and
customers’ advances for construction are deducted from the Company’s rate base for rate-making purposes.
Contributions in aid of construction non-cash property has been received, generally from developers, of $612 in 2014
and $0 in 2013.

Materials and Supplies

Materials and supplies are stated at cost under the first-in, first-out method.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued updated accounting guidance on
recognizing revenue from contracts with customers, which outlines a single comprehensive model that an entity will
apply to determine the measurement of revenue and timing of recognition. The underlying principle is that an entity
will recognize revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers at an amount that the entity expects to
be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. The updated guidance also requires additional disclosure about
the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including
significant judgments and changes in judgments and assets recognized from costs incurred to fulfill a contract. The
updated guidance is effective retrospectively for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016. The Company
is currently evaluating the requirements of the updated guidance to determine the impact of adoption.

In August 2014, the FASB issued an accounting standard that will require management to assess an entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern for each annual and interim reporting period and to provide related footnote
disclosures in circumstances in which substantial doubt exists. The accounting standard with be effective for the
Company’s reporting period beginning January 1, 2017. The Company does not expect the provisions of this
accounting standard to have an impact on its results of operations or financial position.
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2. Utility Plant

Utility plant is composed of the following:

December 31, Approximate range
2014 2013 of useful lives

Utility plant in service

Mains and accessories 109,451$ 103,325$ 47 years

Services, hydrants, treatment

plants and reservoirs 74,541 69,710 14 to 83 years

Operations structures and water tanks 13,528 13,500 33 to 62 years

Miscellaneous pumping and

purification equipment 16,550 16,537 17 to 67 years

Meters, data processing, transportation

and operating equipment 44,976 41,883 6 to 38 years

Land and other non-depreciable assets 7,165 2,803 -

Utility plant in service 266,211 247,758

Utility construction work in progress 1,264 1,585

Net utility plant acquisition adjustment 1,156 1,146 2 to 24 years

Total utility plant 268,631 250,489
Accumulated depreciation (61,600) (56,701)

Utility plant, net of accumulated depreciation 207,031$ 193,788$

3. .Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes is composed of the following:

2014 2013
Current 67$ 908$
Deferred 3,459 1,709

Total federal income tax expense 3,526$ 2,617$

Year ended December 31,

The statutory Federal tax rate is 35% for 2014 and 2013. The Company does not pay New Jersey state taxes;
however, it does pay gross receipts and franchise taxes at a rate of 14% of taxable gross receipts.

The reasons for the differences between amounts computed by applying the statutory Federal income tax rate
to income before income tax expense are as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013

Computed Federal tax expense at statutory rate 3,416$ 2,662$

Amortization of investment tax credits (54) (54)

Stock-based compensation - (3)

Other, net 164 12

Actual income tax expense 3,526$ 2,617$
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Notes to Financial Statements
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3. Income Taxes (continued)

The tax effects of temporary differences between book and tax accounting that give rise to the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

December 31,
2014 2013

Deferred tax assets:
Customers' advances for construction 3,600$ 3,600$
Deferred taxes associated with the gross-up
of revenues necessary to recover, in rates 146 -

Total deferred tax assets 3,746 3,600

Deferred tax liabilities:
Utility plant, principally due to depreciation
and differences in the basis of fixed assets
due to variation in tax and book accounting 26,561 23,289

Costs deducted for tax but not expensed
for books, principally accrued expenses
and bad debt reserves 177 242

Deferred taxes associated with the gross-up
of revenues necessary to recover, in rates - 10

Investment tax credit 107 162

Other 151 -

Total deferred tax liabilities 26,996 23,703

Net deferred tax liability 23,250$ 20,103$

As of December 31, 2014, the Parent’s Federal income tax returns for all years through 2011 have been
closed. For Federal income tax purposes, tax years 2012 through 2014 remain open for examination.

4. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

Regulatory assets represent costs that are expected to be fully recovered in future rates.

The portion related to postretirement benefits other than pensions represents costs that were deferred during
the period between the adoption of the accrual method of accounting for these benefits in 1993 and the recognition
of the accrual method in the Company's rates in 1994.

The portion of the regulatory asset related to rate case filing expenses represents the costs associated with
filing for rate increases that are deferred and amortized over 24 months.

The portion of the regulatory asset related to tank painting represents the costs that were incurred by the
Company and are currently being recovered in rates at $300 per year.

The portion of the regulatory asset related to radium treatment represents the costs incurred by the Company
for treatment of certain wells in order to be in compliance with environmental regulations. These radium treatment
costs were deferred as incurred and currently recognized in rates over 2 years.

The AFUDC is the income tax gross up of the equity portion of AFUDC and is amortized over the life of
the related capital asset.
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4. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities (continued)

The balance of the regulatory asset related to purchased waste water treatment represents the under-recovery
of sewer service in rates for the calendar year ending 2014 and 2013 in the amount of $144 and $110, respectively in
the Company’s Wallkill Sewer Division. A Wallkill Sewer Purchased Sewer Treatment Adjustment Clause had not
been filed as of December 31, 2014.

The regulatory asset for accrued vacation represents costs that would otherwise be charged to operations and
maintenance expense for vacation that is earned by employees, which is recovered as a cost of service.

A deferral for bad debt and collection costs was set up by the Company in 2012 to capture the costs
associated with collecting some overdue accounts. The total amount deferred on the books of the Company was $91
in 2014. The balance is currently being amortized over a 5 year period. In 2013, the $315 balance was comprised of
$290 in legal fees and $25 in bad debt expense. The 2013 was not being amortized.

December 31,
2014 2013

Postretirement benefits other

than pensions -$ 30$

Rate case filing expenses 298 135

Tank painting 927 632

Radium treatment 87 197

AFUDC 136 98

Purchased waste water treatment 144 110

Hurricane Sandy deferral 33 39

Accrued vacation 85 0

Deferred bad debt and collection costs 85 315

Regulatory assets 1,795$ 1,556$

Regulatory liabilities represent costs to be refunded to customers in future rates or amounts recovered from
customers in advance of incurring the costs. The portion of the regulatory liability related to purchased waste water
treatment represents the under-recovery of sewer service in rates in the amount of $26 in 2014 and over-recovery of
$74 in 2013 in the Company’s Maxim Division. Each year a Purchased Sewer Treatment Adjustment Clause is filed
with the NJBPU to request recovery in rates. As of December 31, 2014, a Maxim Division purchased sewer treatment
adjustment clause had been filed and approved by the NJBPU for the 2013 actual, plus 2014 projected over-recovery
of $35. Rates are effective January 1, 2015. The $74 deferral related to the 2013 Maxim purchased waste water deferral
will be amortized for 12 months.

Items giving rise to a portion of deferred Federal income taxes related to certain differences between tax and
book depreciation expense, are recognized in the rate setting process on a cash or flow-through basis and will be
refunded to customers as they reverse.

Utility plant retirement costs represent amounts recovered through rates during the life of the associated asset
and before costs are incurred.

December 31, December 31,

2014 2013

Purchased waste water treatment 48$ 124$

Income tax 418 135

Utility plant retirement costs 2,952 2,770

Regulatory liabilities 3,418$ 3,029$
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4. Commitments and Contingencies

Rent expense was $10 and $12 for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and is included
in operating expenses. Future minimum rental payments are $9 in 2015, $6 in 2016, $2 in 2017, $1 in 2018, and $1 in
2019 and $0 thereafter.

Purchased water was $ 1,229 and $1,235 for the calendar year ending 2014 and 2013, respectively. The
Company has commitments to purchase water with minimums of $1,235 in 2015, $1,272 in 2016, $777 in 2017, $801
in 2018, $825 in 2019 and $2,626 thereafter.

In 2007, the Company entered into service agreements for a 20 year term for the removal of radium present
in two wells in its water system. Additional service agreements were signed in 2008 and one in 2009 to commence
treatment on two additional wells for 20 year terms each. The Company has a contractual obligation for the use of
treatment equipment and media used to reduce radium concentrations from certain wells in its water system. The
future contractual cash obligation related to this equipment is $631 in 2015, $650 in 2016, $669 in 2017, $689 in 2018,
$710 in 2019 and $7,595 thereafter.

The Company is routinely involved in condemnation procedures and legal matters during the ordinary course
of business. Although the results of legal proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, there are no pending legal
proceedings to which the Company is a party or to which any of its properties is the subject that are material or are
expected to have a material effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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6. Long-term Debt and Loans Payable

The long-term debt and loans outstanding as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 are summarized as follows:

Long Term Long Term
Debt Debt

Including Including
Current Current

Issue Mature Original % Portion at % Portion at
Issuer Name Series Date Date Amount Rate December 31, Rate December 31,

12/31/2014 12/31/2013

GE Finanial Assurance K 11/21/1995 11/1/2025 $7,500 8.14% $7,500 8.14% $7,500
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust L 1/1/2000 11/1/2020 $1,880 5.40% $667 5.38% $910
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust L 1/1/2000 11/1/2020 $1,594 0.00% $514 0.00% $599
New Jersey Economic Development Authority N 4/15/2003 9/1/2032 $5,330 5.10% $0 5.10% $5,330
New Jersey Economic Development Authority O 4/16/2003 9/1/2032 $1,670 5.00% $0 5.00% $1,670
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust P 11/04/2004 8/01/2024 $1,300 5.15% $800 5.05% $865
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust Q 11/04/2004 8/01/2024 $1,135 0.00% $603 0.00% $665
Mutual Of Omaha R 12/23/2004 12/01/2019 $5,000 5.14% $5,000 5.14% $5,000
Mutual Of Omaha S 12/15/2006 12/15/2036 $6,000 6.23% $6,000 6.23% $6,000
United of Omaha Life Insurance T 12/12/2007 12/12/2037 $3,800 5.80% $3,800 5.80% $3,800
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust U 11/6/2008 8/1/2028 $985 5.15% $810 5.15% $850
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust V 11/6/2008 8/1/2028 $971 0.00% $581 0.00% $632
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust W 12/2/2009 8/1/2029 $295 4.17% $255 4.20% $265
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust X 12/2/2009 8/1/2029 $294 0.00% $224 0.00% $239
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust Y 3/1/2010 8/1/2029 $230 4.17% $190 4.21% $200
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust Z 3/1/2010 8/1/2029 $236 0.00% $180 0.00% $192
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust AA 12/1/2010 8/1/2030 $430 3.92% $385 3.89% $400
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust BB 10/1/2010 8/1/2030 $213 0.00% $173 0.00% $184
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust DD 3/28/2012 8/1/2031 $855 0.00% $739 0.00% $782
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust CC 5/3/2012 8/1/2031 $780 4.52% $735 4.47% $760
Aqua America, Inc. 5/20/2008 5/20/2016 $3,465 5.40% $3,465 5.40% $3,465
Aqua America, Inc. 5/20/2008 5/20/2017 $3,465 5.40% $3,465 5.40% $3,465
Aqua America, Inc. 5/20/2008 5/20/2021 $1,485 5.40% $1,485 5.40% $1,485
Aqua America, Inc. 5/20/2008 5/20/2022 $1,485 5.40% $1,485 5.40% $1,485
Aqua America, Inc. 6/24/2010 6/24/2028 $6,740 5.22% $6,740 5.22% $2,350
Aqua America, Inc. 6/14/2012 6/14/2027 $11,675 3.57% $11,675 3.57% $6,610

Total $68,813 $57,471 $55,703
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6. Long-term Debt and Loans Payable (continued)

Annual sinking fund payments are required for issues of First Mortgage Bonds. During the next five years,
the following debt maturities, including sinking funds, are due:

First Mortgage Bonds secured by utility plant: 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter

Non-interest bearing 191$ 192$ 191$ 191$ 191$ 1,544$

3.00% to 3.99% Series, due 2020 to 2030 218 204 216 216 224 488

4.00% to 4.99% Series, due 2024 to 2029 50 55 55 60 60 900

5.00% to 5.99% Series, due 2019 to 2037 105 110 115 120 5,125 4,835

6.00% to 6.99% Series, due 2036 - - - - - 6,000

8.00% to 8.99% Series, due 2025 - - - - - 7,500

Total First Mortgage Bonds 564 561 577 587 5,600 21,267

Unsecured affiliate debt:

5.40% Series, due 2016 - 3,465 - - - -

5.40% Series, due 2017 - - 3,465 - - -

5.40% Series, due 2021 - - - - - 1,485

5.40% Series, due 2022 - - - - - 1,485

5.22% Series, due 2028 - - - - - 6,740

3.57% Series, due 2027 - - - - - 11,675

Total 564$ 4,026$ 4,042$ 587$ 5,600$ 42,652$

The mortgage indenture as supplemented restricts the ability of the Company to declare dividends with
respect to certain issues of the First Mortgage Bonds. As of December 31, 2014, approximately $35,742 of reinvested
earnings was free of such restrictions. The Company’s loan agreements contain restrictions on minimum net assets.
As of December 31, 2014 there were restrictions on $45,227 in net assets of the total net assets $71,750.

In March 2014, the Company entered into a debt agreement with the Parent to borrow $9,455 at 4.74%. The
proceeds from the new debt were used to pay down two existing loans totaling $7,000. The debt obligations are
unsecured and are due and payable on June 24, 2028.

In 2012, the Company entered into two loan agreements with the New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure
Trust totaling $1,635. The proceeds of these loans were used for three rehabilitation projects. These loans are to be
paid back over 20 years, with $855 at 0% interest and $780 at 4.41% interest. The 0% loan assumes principal
forgiveness of $428. As of December 31, 2014, the trustee holds $47 of these funds which is reported on the balance
sheet as funds restricted for construction activity. An application will be made to refund the balance.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company had unsecured short-term lines of credit available totaling
$6,500 in both years. Funds borrowed under these lines are classified as loans payable and are used primarily for
temporary financing of utility plant additions. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, funds borrowed under these short-
term lines of credit were $0. The average borrowing under the lines was $0 during 2014 and 2013. The maximum
amount outstanding at the end of any one month was $0 for 2014 and 2013 respectively.
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7. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of current assets and liabilities that are considered financial instruments approximates
their fair values as of the dates presented. The carrying amount of the Company's long-term debt, including current
portion, as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 is $57,471 and $55,703, respectively. The estimated fair value of the
Company's long-term debt as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 is $62,446 and $57,618 respectively. The fair value of
long-term debt has been determined by discounting the future cash flows using current market interest rates for
similar financial instruments of the same duration.

The Company's customer advances for construction has a carrying value of $22,383 and $18,151 at December
31, 2014 and 2013 respectively. Their relative fair values cannot be accurately estimated since future refund payments
depend on several variables, including new customer connections, customer consumption levels and future rate
increases. Portions of these non-interest bearing instruments are refundable, under certain circumstances, either
wholly or in part over varying periods of time, and amounts not paid by the contract expiration dates become non-
refundable. The fair value of these amounts would, however, be less than their carrying value due to the non-interest
bearing feature.

8. Pension Benefits

The Company participates in a noncontributory qualified defined benefit pension plan sponsored by the Parent
covering non-union employees hired prior to April 1, 2003. Benefits under the plan are based on the participant's average
compensation, defined as the beginning-of-year base rate of pay of the five consecutive years producing the highest average
pay multiplied by the years of credited service not to exceed 35 years.

In August 2014, the Parent announced changes to the way it will provide future retirement benefits to employees
acquired through prior acquisition. Effective January 1, 2015, the Parent will provide future retirement benefits for those
employees through its defined contribution plan. As a result, no further service will be considered in future accruals in the
qualified defined benefit pension plan after December 31, 2014.

In the first quarter of 2014, the Parent offered a one-time voluntary lump sum window to certain eligible
terminated vested participants in an effort to reduce its long-term obligations and plan volatility for its qualified
defined benefit pension plan. In May 2014, the plan paid $11,471 to participants who elected to receive a lump sum
distribution, which was funded from existing plan assets.

The funding amount for the Pension Plan for the Aqua America, Inc. Retirement Income Plan will be determined
each year based on the recommendation of management and subject to approval by the Parent’s Pension Committee. The
funding amount will be an amount greater than or equal to the minimum required contribution and less than or equal to the
maximum tax deductible contribution. The Company made a cash contribution of $299 to the Parent’s plan in 2014 and
$326 in 2013. The Company’s policy is to recognize net periodic pension cost based on amounts determined by an
independent actuary. Information regarding accumulated and projected benefit obligations is not prepared at the subsidiary
level.

The Company recorded pension expense of $46 and $299 for 2014 and 2013, respectively.

9. Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions

The Company participates in a postretirement benefit plan sponsored by the Parent that provides medical and
prescription drug benefits, or a cash contribution towards such benefits, and life insurance benefits. Employees may
become eligible for these benefits after age 55 if they have completed at least twenty years of service or attaining age
62 with five years of service or age plus service greater than or equal to 95. Pre-65 plan benefits are self-insured by the
Parent. Post-65 retirees who are eligible for Medicare receive Company contributions in the form of a premium
reimbursement account.
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9. Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions (continued)

The Company’s funding policy is to contribute the lower of the other postretirement benefits cost or the
maximum amount allowed by the Internal Revenue Code. The Company recorded postretirement benefits other than
pension credit of $10 and $11 for 2014 and 2013, respectively. The Company funded postretirement benefits other
than pensions of $0 in 2014 and $0 in 2013. The Company’s policy is to recognize other postretirement benefit cost
based on amounts determined by an independent actuary. Information regarding accumulated and projected benefit
obligations is not prepared at the subsidiary level.

The Parent has 401(k) savings plans that cover substantially all employees. The Company makes matching
contributions that are invested in Aqua America, Inc. common stock based on a percentage of an employee’s
contribution, subject to certain limitations. The portion of the Company’s matching contribution and annual profit-
sharing contribution, recorded as compensation expense, is $83 and $91 for 2014 and 2013, respectively.

10. Employee Stock and Incentive Plan

The Company’s employees participate in an Equity Compensation Plan sponsored by the Parent. Under the
Aqua America, Inc. 2009 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan, as approved by the Parent’s shareholders to replace the
2004 Equity Compensation Plan, stock options, stock units, stock awards, stock appreciation rights, dividend
equivalents, and other stock-based awards may be granted to the Company’s employees, non-employee directors, and
consultants and advisors equal to the market price of the stock on the day of the grant.

Stock options are based upon the common stock of the Parent. Options are exercisable in installments of 33%
annually, starting one year from the date of the grant and expire 10 years from the date of the grant. The Parent accounts
for stock-based compensation using fair value. The fair value of each stock option is amortized into compensation
expense on a straight-line basis over their respective 36 month vesting period, net of estimated forfeitures.
Compensation expense recognized by the Parent is allocated to its subsidiaries based on actual employee costs. Since the
Company is not obligated to reimburse the Parent for stock-based compensation costs incurred, the Company records
these liabilities resulting from compensation costs to paid-in capital.

There were no stock options granted during the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013.

Restricted stock awards provide the grantee with the rights of a shareholder, including the right to receive
dividends and to vote such shares, but not the right to sell or otherwise transfer the shares during the restriction period.
Restricted stock awards result in compensation expense which is equal to the fair market value of the stock on the date
of the grant and is amortized ratably over the restriction period.

During 2014 and 2013, the Company granted performance share units (“PSU”). A PSU represents the right to
receive a share of the Parent’s common stock if specified performance goals are met over the three year performance
period specified in the grant. The fair value of each PSU grant is amortized into compensation expense on a straight-line
basis over their respective 36 month vesting period. During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company recorded
stock based compensation related to PSUs as a component of operations and maintenance expense of $65, and recorded
an income tax benefit of $23. During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company recorded stock-based
compensation related to PSUs as a component of operations and maintenance expense of $69, and recorded an income
tax benefit of $24. The Company assumes that forfeitures will be minimal, and recognizes forfeitures as they occur,
which results in a reduction in compensation expense.
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11. Acquisitions

In 2014, the Company acquired the water utility assets of the Summit Water Company for $11 and the Spartan
Village Water and Sewer Companies for $6. The acquisitions were funded by an equity contribution from Parent.
Operating revenues included in the financial statements of the Company in 2014 were $20.

12. Water and Wastewater Rates

In January 2014, the Company filed an application with the NJBPU requesting a $3,899 or 11.16% increase in
annual water revenues. In August 2014, the NJBPU approved the rate filing designed to increase the Company’s
annual water revenues by $1,150 or 3.27% effective September 1, 2014.

In July 2013, the Company filed an application with the NJBPU requesting a $752 or 62.50% increase in
annual wastewater revenues. In February 2014, the NJBPU approved the 2013 rate filing designed to increase the
Company’s annual wastewater revenues by $617 or 47.70% effective March 1, 2014.

13. Affiliated Company Transactions

The Company has service agreements with the Parent and subsidiaries of the Parent (“other affiliates”). The
types of services rendered between these entities relate to general supervision and administrative functions, long-range
planning, tax, accounting, financing, engineering, legal and other specialized support. Expenditures recorded for these
services by the Parent amounted to approximately $3,321and $3,128 for 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Amounts owed to the Parent and other affiliates by the Company amounted to $330 and $2,414 at December
31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Amounts owed to the Parent and other affiliates are reflected in the accompanying
balance sheet.

Amounts due from the Parent and other affiliates to the Company amounted to $603 and $665 at December
31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Amounts due from the Parent and other affiliates are reflected in the accompanying
balance sheet.

The Company made non-cash refunds of equity contributions to the Parent of $1,192 in 2014 and received
non-cash equity contributions from the Parent of $13,361 in 2013. Both are reported on the Statement of Common
Stockholder’s Equity. In 2013 the non-cash equity contributions relate to the contribution by the Parent for the
settlement of certain net inter-company payables due to the Parent or subsidiary of the Parent.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors and Stockholder of Aqua New Jersey, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Aqua New Jersey, Inc. (the "Company", a wholly owned
subsidiary of Aqua America, Inc.), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related
statements of income, of cash flows and of common stockholder's equity for the years then ended.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Aqua New Jersey, Inc., at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, and the results of its operations and its cash flows
for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

March 30, 2016

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Two Commerce Square, Suite 1800, 2001 Market Street, Philadelphia, PA 19103-7045
T: (267) 330 3000, F: (267) 330-3300, www.pwc.com/us
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Assets 2015 2014 Liabilities and Common Stockholder's Equity 2015 2014

Utility plant, net of accumulated depreciation 221,092$ 204,611$ Common stockholder's equity:
Construction work-in-progress 1,675 1,264 Common stock, $5 par value, 800,000
Utility plant acquisition adjustment, net of shares authorized, 720,625 shares

accumulated amortization (1,670) 1,156 issued and outstanding, respectively 3,603$ 3,603$
Capital in excess of par value 35,322 30,742

Net utility plant 221,097 207,031 Retained earnings 43,661 37,748

Total common stockholder's equity 82,586 72,093

Current assets: Long-term debt, excluding current portion 56,277 56,907
Cash and cash equivalents 299 300
Accounts receivable, less allowance for Current liabilities:

doubtful accounts of $141 and $86 3,064 3,059 Current portion of long-term debt 496 564
Accounts receivable-affiliates - 603 Accounts payable 835 685
Unbilled revenues 1,889 1,854 Accounts payable-affiliates 959 330
Materials and supplies 912 1,134 Accrued interest 164 173
Deferred Tax Asset - 16 Taxes payable 3,550 1,060
Prepayments and other current assets 403 410 Other current liabilities 1,896 1,528

Total current assets 6,567 7,376 Total current liabilities 7,900 4,340

Deferred credits and other non-current liabilities:
Deferred charges and other non-current assets: Customers' advances for construction 23,002 22,383

Debt issuance expense, net of Deferred income taxes 23,568 23,266
accumulated amortization 1,710 1,869 Regulatory liabilities 3,317 3,418

Regulatory assets 1,209 1,795 Other non-current liabilities 2 46
Funds restricted for construction activity - 47
Goodwill 3,020 237 Total deferred credits and other
Other non-current assets 228 345 non-current liabilities 49,889 49,113

Total deferred charges and other
non-current assets 6,167 4,293 Contributions in aid of construction 37,179 36,247

233,831$ 218,700$ 233,831$ 218,700$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2015 2014

Operating revenues 42,981$ 39,346$
Operating expenses:

Operations and maintenance 15,167 14,345
Depreciation 7,037 6,432
Amortization 613 462
Taxes other than income taxes 5,859 5,594

Total operating expenses 28,676 26,833

Operating income 14,305 12,513

Other expense:
Interest on long-term debt 2,919 2,904
Allowance for funds used during construction (123) (150)

Income before income taxes 11,509 9,759
Provision for income taxes 3,946 3,526

Net income 7,563$ 6,233$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2015 2014

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income 7,563$ 6,233$

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 7,650 6,894
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits 289 3,459
Provision for doubtful accounts 172 141
Stock based compensation 80 65
Allowance for equity funds used during construction (93) (113)

Change in current assets and current liabilities:
Receivables, unbilled revenues, materials and supplies

and prepayments 4,879 813
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 3,515 (1,555)
Accrued interest (9) (122)
Other (1,620) (1,798)

Net cash provided by operating activities 22,426 14,017

Cash flows from investing activities:
Construction expenditures (19,499) (11,869)
Decrease in funds restricted for construction activity 25 -
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction (30) (37)

Net cash used in investing activities (19,504) (11,906)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Customers' advances and contributions in aid of

construction 252 334
Repayments of customers' advances (1,016) (533)
Proceeds from long-term debt - 7,000
Debt issuance costs paid - (3)
Repayments of long-term debt (509) (7,551)
Dividends paid - common stock (1,650) (1,450)

Net cash used in financing activities (2,923) (2,203)
Net change in cash (1) (92)

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 300 392

Cash and cash equivalents end of year 299$ 300$

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized, was $1,631 and $2,872 in 2015 and 2014, respectively.
Cash paid for income taxes was $1,153 and $0 in 2015 and 2014, respectively.
See Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Customers' Advances for Contruction and

Constributions in Aid of Construction.
Non-cash financing activity - Capital contribution from Parent was $4,486 in 2015.

Return of capital contributions from Parent was $1,201 in 2014.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Capital Total Common

Common in excess Retained Stockholder's

Stock of par value Earnings Equity

Balance at December 31, 2013 3,603 31,869 32,965 68,437

Net income - - 6,233 6,233

Common stock dividends, $2.01 per share - - (1,450) (1,450)

Stock based compensation - 74 - 74

Return of capital contributions to

Aqua America, Inc. - (1,201) (1,201)

Balance at December 31, 2014 3,603 30,742 37,748 72,093

Net income - - 7,563 7,563

Common stock dividends, $2.29 per share - - (1,650) (1,650)

Stock based compensation - 94 - 94

Capital contributions from Aqua America, Inc. - 4,486 - 4,486

Balance at December 31, 2015 3,603$ 35,322$ 43,661$ 82,586$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations

Aqua New Jersey, Inc. (the “Company”) is a regulated public utility that supplies water to residential,
commercial and industrial customers. All of the Company's customers are located in New Jersey. The
Company is also engaged in providing wastewater services. No single customer accounted for more than one
percent of the Company's operating revenues in 2015 or 2014. The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Aqua America, Inc. (the “Parent”).

Basis of Presentation

The Company’s financial statements are presented in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

The Company has evaluated the period from December 31, 2015, the date of the financial
statements, through March 30, 2016, the date the financial statements were available for issuance, for
subsequent events and determined that no material subsequent events occurred that would affect the
information presented in these financial statements or require additional disclosure.

Use of Estimates in Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Recognition of Revenues

Operating revenues include amounts billed to customers on a cycle basis and unbilled amounts based
on estimated usage from the latest billing to the end of the accounting period.

Regulation

As a regulated public water utility, the Company is subject to regulation by the New Jersey Board of
Public Utilities (“NJBPU”), which has jurisdiction with respect to rates, service, accounting procedures,
acquisitions and other matters. The Company defers certain costs and credits as regulatory assets and
liabilities when it is probable that such amounts will be recognized in the rate making process in a period
different from the period in which they would have been reflected in income by an unregulated company.

Utility Plant and Depreciation

Utility plant is stated at cost which includes contracted cost, direct labor and fringe benefits,
materials, overheads, and for certain utility plant, an allowance for the cost of funds used during construction.
Water systems acquired are recorded at estimated original cost when first devoted to utility service and the
applicable depreciation is recorded in accumulated depreciation.

Utility plant acquisition adjustments represent the difference between the estimated original cost, less
applicable depreciation, and the purchase price of utility plant assets acquired through business acquisitions.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Utility Plant and Depreciation (Continued)

Utility plant included a negative acquisition adjustment balance of $1,670 in 2015, and a positive
acquisition adjustment balance of $1,156 in 2014. The unamortized balances of the net negative utility plant
acquisition adjustment were $1,718 and $1,675 in 2015 and 2014, respectively. The balances are being
amortized over a range of 2 to 23 years. There was a positive acquisition adjustment balance of $48 and
$2,831 in 2015 and 2014, respectively, not subject to amortization. In 2015, $2,783 of the utility plant
acquisition adjustment was reclassed from utility plant to Goodwill.

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs, including minor renewals and betterments, are charged to
operating expenses in accordance with the uniform system of accounts prescribed by the NJBPU. The cost of
new units of property and betterments are capitalized.

When units of utility property are replaced, retired or abandoned, the recorded value thereof is
credited to the asset account and such value, together with the net cost of removal, is charged to accumulated
depreciation. The Company recovers retirement costs through rates during the life of the associated asset and
before the costs are incurred. These amounts result in a regulatory liability being reported based on the
amounts previously recovered through customer rates.

The cost of software upgrades and enhancements are capitalized if they result in added functionality
which enable the software to perform tasks it was previously incapable of performing. Certain information
technology costs associated with major system installations, conversions and improvements, such as software
training, data conversion and business process reengineering costs, are deferred as a regulatory asset if the
Company expects to recover these costs in future rates. If costs are not deferred then they are charged to
operating expenses when incurred. As of December 31, 2015, $484 of costs have been incurred and deferred,
since the last rate proceeding, as a regulatory asset, and the deferral is reported as a component of net
property, plant and equipment.

The straight-line remaining life method is used to compute depreciation on utility plant. The straight-
line method is used with respect to transportation and mechanical equipment. Depreciation is recorded over
the estimated useful lives of the assets which range from 2 to 83 years for utility plant.

Long-lived assets of the Company, which consist primarily of utility plant in service and regulatory assets,
are reviewed for impairment when changes in circumstances or events occur. There has been no change in
circumstances or events that have occurred that require adjustments to the carrying values of these assets.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, property, plant and equipment additions purchased at the period
end, but not yet paid for are $1,026 and $891, respectively.

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction

The allowance for funds used during construction ("AFUDC") is a non-cash credit to income which
represents the estimated cost of funds used to finance the construction of utility plant. AFUDC is applied to
construction projects requiring more than one month to complete. No AFUDC is applied to projects funded
by customer advances for construction or contributions in aid of construction. AFUDC includes the net cost
of borrowed funds and a rate of return on other funds when used, and is recovered through water rates as the
utility plant is depreciated. The amount of AFUDC related to equity funds was $93 and $113 in 2015 and
2014, respectively.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or
less, which are not restricted for construction activity, to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts is
the Company’s best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in our existing accounts receivable, and
is determined based on historical write-off experience and the aging of account balances. The Company
reviews the allowance for doubtful accounts quarterly. When utility customers request extended payment
terms, credit is extended based on regulatory guidelines and collateral is not required.

Deferred Charges

Deferred bond issuance expenses are amortized over the life of the related issuance.

Funds Restricted for Construction Activity

The proceeds received from certain financings for construction and capital improvement of utility
facilities are held in escrow until the designated expenditures are incurred. These amounts are reported as
funds restricted for construction activity and are expected to be released over time as the capital projects are
funded.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess cost over the fair value of net tangible and identifiable intangible
assets acquired through acquisitions. Goodwill is not amortized but is tested for impairment annually, or
more often, if circumstances indicate a possible impairment may exist. When testing goodwill for impairment,
we may assess qualitative factors to determine whether it’s more likely than not that the fair value of our
reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. Alternatively, we may bypass this qualitative assessment and
perform a quantitative goodwill impairment test. If we perform a quantitative test and determine that the
reporting unit’s fair value is less than its carrying amount, we would determine the reporting unit’s implied
fair value of its goodwill and compare it with the carrying amount of its goodwill to measure such
impairment. The Company tested the goodwill attributable for its reporting unit for impairment as of July 31,
2015, in conjunction with the timing of its annual strategic business plan, and concluded that the reporting
unit’s estimated fair value exceeded its carrying amount, indicating that the Company’s goodwill was not
impaired.

Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI”)

For the periods presented, the Company does not have any OCI and therefore, comprehensive
income equals net income. In addition, there is no accumulated comprehensive income.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for certain income and expense items in different time periods for financial
reporting than for tax reporting purposes. Deferred income taxes are provided on the temporary differences
between the tax basis of the assets and liabilities and the amounts at which they are carried in the financial
statements. These deferred income taxes are based on the enacted tax rates expected to be in effect when
such temporary differences are projected to reverse.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income Taxes (Continued)

The Company's earnings are included with those of the Parent and affiliated companies for purposes
of filing a consolidated Federal income tax return. The allocation of the Federal income tax to the Company
is computed on a stand-alone basis. The liability for Federal income taxes is remitted to the Parent.

Investment tax credits have been deferred and are amortized over the estimated useful lives of the
related properties.

Judgment is required in evaluating the Company’s federal and state tax positions. Despite
management’s belief that the Company’s tax return positions are fully supportable, the Company may
establish reserves when it believes that certain tax positions are likely to be challenged and it may not fully
prevail in these challenges. When reserves are established, the associated interest and penalties are recorded as
a component of the Company’s income tax provision.

Customers' Advances for Construction

Water mains or, in some instances, cash advances to reimburse the Company its costs to construct water
mains, are contributed to the Company by customers, real estate developers and builders in order to extend water
service to their properties. The value of these contributions is recorded as customers’ advances for construction.
The Company makes refunds on these advances over a specific period of time based on operating revenues related
to the main or as new customers are connected to and take service from the main. After all refunds are made, any
remaining balance is transferred to contributions in aid of construction. Customers’ advances for construction
non-cash property has been received, generally from developers, of $2,143 in 2015 and $5,353 in 2014.

Contributions in Aid of Construction

Contributions in aid of construction include direct non-refundable contributions and the portion of
customers' advances for construction that have become non-refundable. Contributions in aid of construction
and customers’ advances for construction are deducted from the Company’s rate base for rate-making
purposes. Contributions in aid of construction non-cash property has been received, generally from
developers, of $0 in 2015 and $612 in 2014.

Materials and Supplies

Materials and supplies are stated at cost under the first-in, first-out method.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued updated accounting guidance on accounting for leases, which
requires lessees to establish a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet for all leases with
terms longer than 12 months. For income statement purposes, leases will be classified as either operating or
finance. Operating leases will result in straight-line expense while finance leases will result in a front-loaded
expense pattern. The updated accounting guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2018, and interim periods within those fiscal years, with early adoption available. The Company is evaluating
the requirements of the updated guidance to determine the impact of adoption.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements (Continued)

In November 2015, the FASB issued updated accounting guidance on the balance sheet classification
of deferred tax assets and liabilities, which requires that all deferred tax assets and liabilities, along with any
related valuation allowance, be classified as noncurrent on the balance sheet. Previously, deferred taxes were
presented as a net current asset or liability and net noncurrent asset or liability, which required a jurisdiction-
by-jurisdiction analysis based on the classification of the assets and liabilities to which the underlying
temporary differences relate, or, in the case of tax loss carryforwards, based on the period in which the
attribute is expected to be realized. The updated guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2016, and interim periods within those fiscal years, with early adoption available, and the
guidance may be applied either prospectively or retrospectively. The Company has elected to early adopt the
updated guidance, prospectively, for its fiscal year ended December 31, 2015, and has not retrospectively
adjusted the prior period consolidated balance sheet. If the Company had adopted the updated guidance
retrospectively, the December 31, 2014 deferred income taxes of $16 classified as current assets would have
been reported as a partial reduction to the deferred income taxes and investment tax credits reported in the
deferred credits and other liabilities section of the consolidated balance sheet.

In September 2015, the FASB issued updated accounting guidance on simplifying measurement-
period adjustments in business combinations, which eliminates the requirement that an acquirer in a business
combination account for measurement-period adjustments retrospectively. Instead, an acquirer will recognize
a measurement-period adjustment during the period in which it determines the amount of the adjustment.
The updated guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015, and interim periods
within those fiscal years, with early adoption available. The Company does not expect the provisions of this
accounting standard to have a material impact on its results of operations or financial position.

In April 2015, the FASB issued updated accounting guidance on simplifying the presentation of debt
issuance costs, which requires debt issuance costs to be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction
from the carrying value of the associated debt liability. Previously, debt issuance costs were presented in the
balance sheet as a deferred charge. The accounting standard is effective for reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2015, and will be applied retrospectively. The Company does not expect the provisions of this
accounting standard to have a material impact on its results of operations or financial position.

In August 2014, the FASB issued an accounting standard that will require management to assess an
entity’s ability to continue as a going concern for each annual and interim reporting period and to provide
related footnote disclosures in circumstances in which substantial doubt exists. The accounting standard is
effective in the first annual reporting period beginning after December 15, 2016. The Company does not
expect the provisions of this accounting standard to have an impact on its results of operations or financial
position.

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued updated accounting
guidance on recognizing revenue from contracts with customers, which outlines a single comprehensive
model that an entity will apply to determine the measurement of revenue and timing of recognition. The
underlying principle is that an entity will recognize revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to
customers at an amount that the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. The
updated guidance also requires additional disclosure about the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of
revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including significant judgments and changes in
judgments and assets recognized from costs incurred to fulfill a contract. In July 2015, the FASB approved a
one year deferral to the original effective date of this guidance. The updated guidance is effective
retrospectively for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017. The Company is evaluating the
requirements of the updated guidance to determine the impact of adoption.
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2. Utility Plant

Utility plant is composed of the following:

3. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes is composed of the following:

The statutory Federal tax rate is 35% for 2015 and 2014. The Company does not pay New Jersey state taxes;
however, it does pay gross receipts and franchise taxes at a rate of 14% of taxable gross receipts.

The reasons for the differences between amounts computed by applying the statutory Federal
income tax rate to income before income tax expense are as follows:

December 31, Approximate range
2014 2013 of useful lives

Utility plant in service

Mains and accessories 120,748$ 109,451$ 47 years

Services, hydrants, treatment

plants and reservoirs 81,994 74,541 14 to 83 years

Operations structures and water tanks 13,731 13,528 33 to 62 years

Miscellaneous pumping and

purification equipment 16,986 16,550 17 to 67 years

Meters, data processing, transportation

and operating equipment 47,232 44,976 6 to 38 years

Land and other non-depreciable assets 5,807 7,165 -

Utility plant in service 286,498 266,211

Utility construction work in progress 1,675 1,264

Net utility plant acquisition adjustment (1,670) 1,156 2 to 24 years

Total utility plant 286,503 268,631
Accumulated depreciation (65,406) (61,600)

Utility plant, net of accumulated depreciation 221,097$ 207,031$

2015 2014
Current 3,657$ 67$
Deferred 289 3,459

Total federal income tax expense 3,946$ 3,526$

Year ended December 31,

Year ended December 31,

2015 2014

Computed Federal tax expense at statutory rate 4,028$ 3,416$

Amortization of investment tax credits (54) (54)

Stock-based compensation (2) -

Other, net (26) 164

Actual income tax expense 3,946$ 3,526$
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3. Income Taxes (Continued)

The tax effects of temporary differences between book and tax accounting that give rise to the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

As of December 31, 2015, the Parent’s Federal income tax returns for all years through 2011 have
been closed. For Federal income tax purposes, tax years 2012 through 2015 remain open for examination.

4. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

Regulatory assets represent costs that are expected to be fully recovered in future rates.

The portion of the regulatory asset related to rate case filing expenses represents the costs associated
with filing for rate increases that are deferred and amortized over 24 months.

The portion of the regulatory asset related to tank painting represents the costs that were incurred by
the Company and are currently being recovered in rates at $300 per year.

The portion of the regulatory asset related to radium treatment represents the costs incurred by the
Company for treatment of certain wells in order to be in compliance with environmental regulations. These
radium treatment costs were deferred as incurred and currently recognized in rates over 2 years.

The AFUDC is the income tax gross up of the equity portion of AFUDC and is amortized over the
life of the related capital asset.

December 31,
2015 2014

Deferred tax assets:
Customers' advances for construction 3,600$ 3,600$
Deferred taxes associated with the gross-up

of revenues necessary to recover, in rates 136 146
Total deferred tax assets 3,736 3,746

Deferred tax liabilities:
Utility plant, principally due to depreciation

and differences in the basis of fixed assets
due to variation in tax and book accounting 27,023 26,561

Costs deducted for tax but not expensed
for books, principally accrued expenses
and bad debt reserves 71 177

Investment tax credit 53 107
Other 157 151

Total deferred tax liabilities 27,304 26,996

Net deferred tax liability 23,568$ 23,250$
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4. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities (Continued)

The balance of the regulatory asset related to purchased waste water treatment represents the
under-recovery of sewer service in rates for the calendar year ending 2015 and 2014 in the amount of $50 and
$144, respectively in the Company’s Wallkill Sewer division, and $3 in the Company’s Maxim’s division in
2015. As of December 31, 2015, a purchased sewer treatment adjustment clause had been filed and approved
by the NJBPU for both the Wallkill and Maxim Wastewater divisions. Rates are effective January 1, 2016.
In 2015, a $110 adjustment was recorded on the books of the Company to write-off the 2011 through 2013

deferred Wallkill purchased waste water balance that was not recovered in the filing. The $31 deferral related
to the 2014 Wallkill purchased wastewater will be amortized for 12 months. The portion of the regulatory
asset related to Maxim purchased wastewater treatment represents the under-recovery of sewer service in
rates in the amount of $36 in 2015 and the over-recovery of $33 in 2014. The $33 deferral related to the 2014
will be amortized for 12 months.

The regulatory asset for accrued vacation represents costs that would otherwise be charged to
operations and maintenance expense for vacation that is earned by employees, which is recovered as a cost of
service.

A deferral for bad debt and collection costs was set up by the Company in 2012 to capture the costs
associated with collecting some overdue accounts. The total amount deferred on the books of the Company
was $91 in 2014. The balance is currently being amortized over a 5 year period.

Regulatory liabilities represent costs to be refunded to customers in future rates or amounts
recovered from customers in advance of incurring the costs.

Items giving rise to a portion of deferred Federal income taxes related to certain differences between
tax and book depreciation expense are recognized in the rate setting process on a cash or flow-through basis
and will be refunded to customers as they reverse.

Utility plant retirement costs represent amounts recovered through rates during the life of the
associated asset and before costs are incurred.

December 31,
2015 2014

Rate case filing expenses 148 298

Tank painting 644 927

Radium treatment 35 87

AFUDC 165 136

Purchased waste water treatment 53 144

Hurricane Sandy deferral 0 33

Accrued vacation 97 85

Deferred bad debt and collection costs 67 85

Regulatory assets 1,209$ 1,795$
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4. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities (Continued)

The portion of the regulatory liability related to purchased waste water treatment represents the under-
recovery of sewer service in rates in the amount of $26 in 2014 and the over-recovery of $74 in 2013 in the
Company’s Maxim division. Each year a Purchased Sewer Treatment Adjustment Clause is filed with the
NJBPU to request recovery in rates. The $74 deferral related to the 2013 Maxim purchased waste water
deferral was amortized for 12 months in 2015. The 2014 under-recovery of sewer service in rates of $26 was
reclassed to a regulatory asset account in 2015.

5. Commitments and Contingencies

Rent expense was $10 and $10 for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and is
included in operating expenses. Future minimum rental payments are $2 in 2016, $2 in 2017, $2 in 2018, $2 in
2019, and $0 in 2020 and $0 thereafter.

Purchased water was $ 1,250 and $1,229 for the calendar year ending 2015 and 2014, respectively.
The Company has commitments to purchase water with minimums of $1,279 in 2016, $791 in 2017, $791 in
2018, $791 in 2019, $791 in 2020 and $1,583 thereafter.

In 2007, the Company entered into service agreements for a 20 year term for the removal of radium
present in two wells in its water system. Additional service agreements were signed in 2008 and one in 2009
to commence treatment on two additional wells for 20 year terms each. The Company has a contractual
obligation for the use of treatment equipment and media used to reduce radium concentrations from certain
wells in its water system. The future contractual cash obligation related to this equipment is $796 in 2016,
$796 in 2017, $796 in 2018, $796 in 2019, $796 in 2020 and $6,511 thereafter.

The Company is routinely involved in condemnation procedures and legal matters during the
ordinary course of business. Although the results of legal proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty,
there are no pending legal proceedings to which the Company is a party or to which any of its properties is
the subject that are material or are expected to have a material effect on the Company’s financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

2015 2014

Purchased waste water treatment -$ 48$

Income tax 388 418

Utility plant retirement costs 2,929 2,952

Regulatory liabilities 3,317$ 3,418$

December 31,
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6. Long-term Debt and Loans Payable

The long-term debt and loans outstanding as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are summarized as follows:

Long Term Long Term
Debt Debt

Including Including
Current Current

Mature Original % Portion at % Portion at

Issuer Name Series Date Amount Rate December 31, Rate December 31,

12/31/2015 12/31/2014

GE Finanial Assurance K 11/1/2025 $7,500 8.14% $7,500 8.14% $7,500
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust L 11/1/2020 $1,880 2.50% $554 5.38% $667
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust L 11/1/2020 $1,594 0.00% $429 0.00% $514
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust P 8/01/2024 $1,300 5.27% $615 5.05% $800
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust Q 8/01/2024 $1,135 0.00% $542 0.00% $603
Mutual Of Omaha R 12/01/2019 $5,000 5.14% $5,000 5.14% $5,000
Mutual Of Omaha S 12/15/2036 $6,000 6.23% $6,000 6.23% $6,000
United of Omaha Life Insurance T 12/12/2037 $3,800 5.80% $3,800 5.80% $3,800
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust U 8/1/2028 $985 5.16% $770 5.15% $810
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust V 8/1/2028 $971 0.00% $532 0.00% $581
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust W 8/1/2029 $295 4.13% $245 4.20% $255
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust X 8/1/2029 $294 0.00% $210 0.00% $224
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust Y 8/1/2029 $230 4.13% $180 4.21% $190
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust Z 8/1/2029 $236 0.00% $168 0.00% $180
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust AA 8/1/2030 $430 3.97% $365 3.89% $385
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust BB 8/1/2030 $213 0.00% $162 0.00% $173
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust DD 8/1/2031 $855 0.00% $681 0.00% $739
New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust CC 8/1/2031 $780 4.59% $705 4.47% $735
Aqua America, Inc. 5/20/2016 $3,465 5.40% $3,465 5.40% $3,465
Aqua America, Inc. 5/20/2017 $3,465 5.40% $3,465 5.40% $3,465
Aqua America, Inc. 5/20/2021 $1,485 5.40% $1,485 5.40% $1,485
Aqua America, Inc. 5/20/2022 $1,485 5.40% $1,485 5.40% $1,485
Aqua America, Inc. 6/24/2028 $6,740 5.22% $6,740 5.22% $6,740
Aqua America, Inc. 6/14/2027 $11,675 3.57% $11,675 3.57% $11,675

Total $61,813 $56,773 $57,471
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6. Long-term Debt and Loans Payable (Continued)

Annual sinking fund payments are required for issues of First Mortgage Bonds. During the next five
years, the following debt maturities, including sinking funds, are due:

The mortgage indenture as supplemented restricts the ability of the Company to declare dividends
with respect to certain issues of the First Mortgage Bonds. As of December 31, 2015, approximately $41,998
of reinvested earnings was free of such restrictions. The Company’s loan agreements contain restrictions on
minimum net assets. As of December 31, 2015 there were restrictions on $48,776 in net assets of the total net
assets $82,586.

In 2014, the Company entered into a debt agreement with the Parent to borrow $9,455 at a weighted
average of 4.74%. The proceeds from the new debt were used to pay down two existing loans totaling
$7,000. The debt obligations are unsecured and are due and payable on June 14, 2027 and June 24, 2028.

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company had unsecured short-term lines of credit available
totaling $6,500 in both years. Funds borrowed under these lines are classified as loans payable and are used
primarily for temporary financing of utility plant additions. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, funds
borrowed under these short-term lines of credit were $0. The average borrowing under the lines was $0
during 2015 and 2014. The maximum amount outstanding at the end of any one month was $0 for 2015 and
2014 respectively.

7. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of current assets and liabilities that are considered financial instruments
approximates their fair values as of the dates presented. The carrying amount of the Company's long-term
debt, including current portion, as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 is $56,773 and $57,471, respectively. The
estimated fair value of the Company's long-term debt as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 is $62,986 and
$62,446 respectively. The fair value of long-term debt has been determined by discounting the future cash
flows using current market interest rates for similar financial instruments of the same duration.

First Mortgage Bonds secured by utility plant: 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Thereafter

Non-interest bearing 192$ 189$ 189$ 192$ 188$ 1,345$

3.00% to 3.99% Series, due 2020 to 2030 204 202 214 214 221 293

4.00% to 4.99% Series, due 2024 to 2029 55 55 55 60 60 845

5.00% to 5.99% Series, due 2019 to 2037 45 110 120 5,125 125 4,660

6.00% to 6.99% Series, due 2036 - - - - - 6,000

8.00% to 8.99% Series, due 2025 - - - - - 7,500

Total First Mortgage Bonds 496 556 578 5,591 594 20,643

Unsecured affiliate debt:

5.40% Series, due 2016 3,465 - - - - -

5.40% Series, due 2017 - 3,465 - - - -

5.40% Series, due 2021 - - - - - 1,485

5.40% Series, due 2022 - - - - - 1,485

5.22% Series, due 2028 - - - - - 6,740

3.57% Series, due 2027 - - - - - 11,675

Total 3,961$ 4,021$ 578$ 5,591$ 594$ 42,028$
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8. Pension Benefits

The Company participates in a noncontributory qualified defined benefit pension plan sponsored by
the Parent covering non-union employees hired prior to April 1, 2003. Benefits under the plan are based on
the participant's average compensation, defined as the beginning-of-year base rate of pay of the five
consecutive years producing the highest average pay multiplied by the years of credited service not to exceed
35 years.

In August 2014, the Parent announced changes to the way it will provide future retirement benefits
to employees acquired through prior acquisition. Effective January 1, 2015, the Parent will provide future
retirement benefits for those employees through its defined contribution plan. As a result, no further service
will be considered in future accruals in the qualified defined benefit pension plan after December 31, 2014.

In the first quarter of 2014, the Parent offered a one-time voluntary lump sum window to certain
eligible terminated vested participants in an effort to reduce its long-term obligations and plan volatility for its
qualified defined benefit pension plan. In May 2014, the plan paid $11,471 to participants who elected to
receive a lump sum distribution, which was funded from existing plan assets. Effective July 1, 2015, the
Company added a permanent lump sum option to the form of benefit payments offered to participants of the
qualified defined benefit pension plan upon retirement or termination. The plan paid $5,329 during the
second half of 2015 to participants who elected this option.

The funding amount for the Pension Plan for the Aqua America, Inc. Retirement Income Plan will
be determined each year based on the recommendation of management and subject to approval by the
Parent’s Pension Committee. The funding amount will be an amount greater than or equal to the minimum
required contribution and less than or equal to the maximum tax deductible contribution. The Company
made a cash contribution of $39 to the Parent’s plan in 2015 and $299 in 2014.

The Company’s policy is to recognize net periodic pension cost based on amounts determined by an
independent actuary. Information regarding accumulated and projected benefit obligations is not prepared at
the subsidiary level. The Company recorded pension expense of $6 and $46 for 2015 and 2014, respectively.

9. Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions

The Company participates in a postretirement benefit plan sponsored by the Parent that provides
medical and prescription drug benefits, or a cash contribution towards such benefits, and life insurance
benefits. Employees may become eligible for these benefits after age 55 if they have completed at least twenty
years of service or attaining age 62 with five years of service or age plus service greater than or equal to 95.
Pre-65 plan benefits are self-insured by the Parent. Post-65 retirees who are eligible for Medicare receive
Company contributions in the form of a premium reimbursement account.

The Company’s funding policy is to contribute the lower of the other postretirement benefits cost or
the maximum amount allowed by the Internal Revenue Code. The Company recorded postretirement
benefits other than pension credits of $19 and $10 for 2015 and 2014, respectively. The Company funded
postretirement benefits other than pensions of $0 in 2015 and $0 in 2014. The Company’s policy is to
recognize other postretirement benefit cost based on amounts determined by an independent actuary.
Information regarding accumulated and projected benefit obligations is not prepared at the subsidiary level.

The Parent has 401(k) savings plans that cover substantially all employees. The Company makes
matching contributions that are invested in Aqua America, Inc. common stock based on a percentage of an
employee’s contribution, subject to certain limitations. The portion of the Company’s contribution, recorded
as compensation expense, is $218 and $83 for 2015 and 2014, respectively.



AQUA NEW JERSEY, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

(In thousands of dollars)
Years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

19

10. Employee Stock and Incentive Plan

The Company’s employees participate in an Equity Compensation Plan sponsored by the Parent.
Under the Aqua America, Inc. 2009 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan, as approved by the Parent’s
shareholders to replace the 2004 Equity Compensation Plan, stock options, stock units, stock awards, stock
appreciation rights, dividend equivalents, and other stock-based awards may be granted to the Company’s
employees, non-employee directors, and consultants and advisors equal to the market price of the stock on the
day of the grant.

Stock options are based upon the common stock of the Parent. Options are exercisable in installments
of 33% annually, starting one year from the date of the grant and expire 10 years from the date of the grant. The
Parent accounts for stock-based compensation using fair value. The fair value of each stock option is amortized
into compensation expense on a straight-line basis over their respective 36 month vesting period, net of
estimated forfeitures. Compensation expense recognized by the Parent is allocated to its subsidiaries based on
actual employee costs. Since the Company is not obligated to reimburse the Parent for stock-based
compensation costs incurred, the Company records these liabilities resulting from compensation costs to paid-in
capital.

There were no stock options granted during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company’s stock-based compensation related to stock
options resulted in the following: operations and maintenance expense of $0 and recorded an income tax
benefit of $2. For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company’s stock-based compensation related to
stock options resulted in the following: operations and maintenance expense of $0 and recorded an income tax
benefit of $0.

Restricted stock awards provide the grantee with the rights of a shareholder, including the right to
receive dividends and to vote such shares, but not the right to sell or otherwise transfer the shares during the
restriction period. Restricted stock awards result in compensation expense which is equal to the fair market
value of the stock on the date of the grant and is amortized ratably over the restriction period. For the years
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, there was no restricted stock based compensation related to restricted
stock awards.

During 2015 and 2014, the Company granted performance share units (“PSU”). A PSU represents the
right to receive a share of the Parent’s common stock if specified performance goals are met over the three year
performance period specified in the grant. The fair value of each PSU grant is amortized into compensation
expense on a straight-line basis over their respective 36 month vesting period. During the year ended December
31, 2015, the Company recorded stock based compensation related to PSUs as a component of operations and
maintenance expense of $80, and recorded an income tax benefit of $28. During the year ended December 31,
2014, the Company recorded stock-based compensation related to PSUs as a component of operations and
maintenance expense of $65, and recorded an income tax benefit of $23. The Company assumes that forfeitures
will be minimal, and recognizes forfeitures as they occur, which results in a reduction in compensation expense.

11. Acquisitions

In 2015, the Company acquired the water utility assets of Seaview Harbor Water Company for $227.
The acquisition was funded by an equity contribution from Parent. Operating revenue included in the
financial statements related to the acquisition for 2015 was $87.

In 2014, the Company acquired the water utility assets of the Summit Water Company for $11 and
the Spartan Village Water and Sewer Companies for $6. The acquisitions were funded by an equity
contribution from Parent. Operating revenue included in the financial statements related to these acquisitions
for 2015 and 2014 was $20 and $163, respectively.
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12. Water and Wastewater Rates

In January 2014, the Company filed an application with the NJBPU requesting a $3,899 or 11.16%
increase in annual water revenues. In August 2014, the NJBPU approved the rate filing designed to increase
the Company’s annual water revenues by $1,150 or 3.27% effective September 1, 2014.

13. Affiliated Company Transactions

The Company has service agreements with the Parent and subsidiaries of the Parent (“other
affiliates”). The types of services rendered between these entities relate to general supervision and
administrative functions, long-range planning, tax, accounting, financing, engineering, legal and other
specialized support. Expenditures recorded for these services by the Parent amounted to approximately
$3,428 and $3,321 for 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Amounts owed to the Parent and other affiliates by the Company amounted to $959 and $330 at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Amounts owed to the Parent and other affiliates are reflected in
the accompanying balance sheet.

Amounts due from the Parent and other affiliates to the Company amounted to $0 and $603 at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Amounts due from the Parent and other affiliates are reflected in
the accompanying balance sheet.

The Company received non-cash equity contributions from the Parent of $4,486 in 2015 and made
non-cash refunds of equity contributions to the Parent of $1,201 in 2014. Both are reported on the
Statement of Common Stockholder’s Equity. In 2015, the non-cash equity contributions relate to the
contribution by the Parent for the settlement of certain net inter-company payables due to the Parent or
subsidiary of the Parent.
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors and Stockholder of Aqua New Jersey, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Aqua New Jersey, Inc. (the “Company,” a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Aqua America, Inc.), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31,
2016 and 2015, and the related statements of income, of cash flows and of common stockholder’s equity
for the years then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Aqua New Jersey, Inc. as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

March 30, 2017

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Two Commerce Square, Suite 1800, 2001 Market Street, Philadelphia, PA 19103-7045
T: (267) 330 3000, F: (267) 330-3300, www.pwc.com/us
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Assets 2016 2015 Liabilities and Common Stockholder's Equity 2016 2015
 

Utility plant, net of accumulated depreciation 235,255$     221,092$     Common stockholder's equity:
Construction work-in-progress 1,595          1,675            Common stock, $5 par value, 800,000 
Utility plant acquisition adjustment, net of     shares authorized, 720,625 shares
   accumulated amortization (1,637)         (1,670)             issued and outstanding, respectively 3,603$        3,603$        

            Capital in excess of par value 28,766        35,322        
    Net utility plant 235,213       221,097         Retained earnings 50,031        43,661        

    Total common stockholder's equity 82,400        82,586        

Long-term debt, excluding current portion 19,874        27,961        
Long-term debt- affiliate 43,385        28,315        
Total long-term debt, excluding current portion 63,259        56,276        
Debt issuance expense, net of amortization (1,964)         (1,709)         

Current assets: Total long-term debt, excluding current portion,
  Cash and cash equivalents 238             299                  net of debt issuance costs 61,295        54,567        
  Accounts receivable, less allowance for
    doubtful accounts of $155 and $141 3,038          3,064          Current liabilities:
  Unbilled revenues 2,124          1,889            Current portion of long-term debt 522             496             
  Materials and supplies 1,230          912               Accounts payable 1,044          835             
  Prepayments and other current assets 507             403               Accounts payable-affiliates 4,834          959             

  Accrued interest 372             164             
    Total current assets 7,137          6,567            Taxes payable 3,739          3,550          

  Other current liabilities 3,274          1,896          
    Total current liabilities 13,785        7,900          

Deferred credits and other non-current liabilities:
  Customers' advances for construction 23,117        23,002        
  Deferred income taxes 23,682        23,568        

Deferred charges and other non-current assets:   Regulatory liabilities 3,581          3,317          
  Regulatory assets 1,396 1,209   Other non-current liabilities 84              2                
  Goodwill 3,020 3,020
  Other non-current assets 189 228     Total deferred credits and other
    Total deferred charges and other       non-current liabilities 50,464        49,889        
      non-current assets 4,605          4,457            Contributions in aid of construction 39,011        37,179        

246,955$     232,121$     246,955$     232,121$     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2016 2015

Operating revenues 44,352$       42,981$       
Operating expenses:
  Operations and maintenance expenses 15,229         15,167         
  Depreciation 7,564           7,037           
  Amortization 412             613             
  Taxes other than income taxes 6,211           5,859           

    Total operating expenses 29,416         28,676         
 
    Operating income 14,936         14,305         

Other expense (income):
  Interest on long-term debt 3,065           2,919           
  Allowance for funds used during construction (187)            (123)            

Income before income taxes 12,058         11,509         
Provision for income taxes 4,238           3,946           

Net income 7,820$         7,563$         

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2016 2015

Cash flows from operating activities:
    Net income 7,820$           7,563$           
 Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
       provided by operating activities:
    Depreciation and amortization 7,976             7,650             
    Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits 86                 289                
    Provision for doubtful accounts 149                172                
    Stock based compensation 40                 80                 
    Allowance for equity funds used during construction (143)               (93)                

 Change in current assets and current liabilities:
    Receivables, unbilled revenues, materials and supplies
       and prepayments 5,919             4,879             
    Accounts payable and other current liabilities 3,956             3,515             
    Accrued interest 209                (9)                  
    Other (1,527)            (1,620)            

  Net cash provided by operating activities 24,485           22,426           

Cash flows from investing activities:
    Construction expenditures (14,827)          (19,499)          
    Decrease  in funds restricted for construction activity -                25                 
    Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction (44)                (30)                

  Net cash used in investing activities (14,871)          (19,504)          

Cash flows from financing activities:
    Customers' advances and contributions in aid of
       construction 433                252                
    Repayments of customers' advances (655)               (1,016)            
    Debt issuance costs paid (7)                  -                
    Repayments of long-term debt (7,996)            (509)               
    Dividends paid - common stock   (1,450)            (1,650)            

 Net cash used in  financing activities (9,675)            (2,923)            
 Net change in cash and cash equivalents (61)                (1)                  
 Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 299                300                

 Cash and cash equivalents end of year 238$              299$              

Cash paid during the year for:
    Interest, net of capitalized amounts 1,186$           1,631$           
    Income Taxes 3,945$           1,153$           

See Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Customers' Advances for Contruction and 
    Constributions in Aid of Construction, Note 10 - Employee Stock and Incentive Plan and Note 13 - 
    Affiliate Company transactions for a description of non-cash activities.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Capital Total Common

Common in excess Retained Stockholder's

Stock of par value Earnings Equity

Balance at December 31, 2014 3,603$        30,742$       37,748$        72,093$        

Net income -             -              7,563            7,563            

Common stock dividends, $2.29 per share -             -              (1,650)           (1,650)           

Stock based compensation -             94               -               94                

Capital contributions from Aqua America, Inc. -             4,486           4,486            

Balance at December 31, 2015 3,603          35,322         43,661          82,586          

Net income -             -              7,820            7,820            

Common stock dividends, $2.01 per share -             -              (1,450)           (1,450)           

Stock based compensation -             59               -               59                

Return of capital contributions to 

    Aqua America, Inc. -             (6,615)          -               (6,615)           

Balance at December 31, 2016 3,603$        28,766$       50,031$        82,400$        

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 
Nature of Operations  

 
Aqua New Jersey, Inc. (the “Company”) is a regulated public utility that supplies water to residential, 

commercial and industrial customers. All of the Company's customers are located in New Jersey. The 
Company is also engaged in providing wastewater services. No single customer accounted for more than one 
percent of the Company's operating revenues in 2016 or 2015. The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
Aqua America, Inc. (the “Parent”).  
 
Basis of Presentation 

 
         The Company’s financial statements are presented in accordance with U.S. generally accepted 

accounting principles.  
 

 The Company has evaluated the period from December 31, 2016, the date of the financial 
statements, through March 30, 2017, the date the financial statements were available for issuance, for 
subsequent events and determined that no material subsequent events occurred that would affect the 
information presented in these financial statements or require additional disclosure.  

 
Use of Estimates in Preparation of Financial Statements 

 
 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Recognition of Revenues 

 
 Operating revenues include amounts billed to customers on a cycle basis and unbilled amounts based 
on estimated usage from the date of the latest meter reading to the end of the accounting period.  Antenna 
revenues are accrued on the books of the Company and amortized into revenue as earned.  Total antenna 
revenue was $1,000 and $1,000 in 2016 and 2015, respectively.   
 

 
Regulation 

 
 As a regulated public water utility, the Company is subject to regulation by the New Jersey Board of 
Public Utilities (“NJBPU”), which has jurisdiction with respect to rates, service, accounting procedures, 
acquisitions and other matters. The Company defers certain costs and credits as regulatory assets and 
liabilities when it is probable that such amounts will be recognized in the rate making process in a period 
different from the period in which they would have been reflected in income by an unregulated company. 

 
Utility Plant and Depreciation  
 

Utility plant is stated at cost which includes contracted cost, direct labor and fringe benefits, 
materials, overheads, and for certain utility plant, an allowance for the cost of funds used during construction. 
Water systems acquired are recorded at estimated original cost when first devoted to utility service and the 
applicable depreciation is recorded in accumulated depreciation.  
 

Utility plant acquisition adjustments represent the difference between the estimated original cost, less 
applicable depreciation, and the purchase price of utility plant assets acquired through business acquisitions.  
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 
Utility Plant and Depreciation (Continued) 
 

Utility plant included a negative acquisition adjustment balance of $1,637 and $1,670 in 2016 and 
2015, respectively.  The unamortized balances of the net negative utility plant acquisition adjustment were 
$2,263 and $1,718 in 2016 and 2015, respectively.  The unamortized balances are being amortized over a 
range of 1 to 24 years. There was a positive acquisition adjustment balance of $48 and $48 in 2016 and 2015, 
respectively, not subject to amortization.   
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs, including minor renewals and betterments, are charged to 
operating expenses in accordance with the uniform system of accounts prescribed by the NJBPU. The cost of 
new units of property and betterments are capitalized.  

 
When units of utility property are replaced, retired, or abandoned, the recorded value thereof is 

credited to the asset account and such value, together with the net cost of removal, is charged to accumulated 
depreciation. The Company recovers retirement costs through rates during the life of the associated asset and 
before the costs are incurred. These amounts result in a regulatory liability being reported based on the 
amounts previously recovered through customer rates.  
 

The cost of software upgrades and enhancements are capitalized if they result in added functionality 
which enable the software to perform tasks it was previously incapable of performing. Certain information 
technology costs associated with major system installations, conversions and improvements, such as software 
training, data conversion and business process reengineering costs, are deferred as a regulatory asset if the 
Company expects to recover these costs in future rates. If costs are not deferred then they are charged to 
operating expenses when incurred. As of December 31, 2016, $438 of costs have been incurred and deferred, 
since the last rate proceeding, as a regulatory asset, and the deferral is reported as a component of net 
property, plant and equipment.       

 
The straight-line remaining life method is used to compute depreciation on utility plant. The straight-

line method is used with respect to transportation and mechanical equipment. Depreciation is recorded over 
the estimated useful lives of the assets which range from 2 to 83 years for utility plant. 

  
 Long-lived assets of the Company, which consist primarily of utility plant in service and regulatory assets, 
are reviewed for impairment when changes in circumstances or events occur. There has been no change in 
circumstances or events that have occurred that require adjustments to the carrying values of these assets. 
 

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, property, plant and equipment additions purchased at the period 
end, but not yet paid for are $2,745 and $1,026, respectively. 

 
Allowance for Funds Used During Construction 

  
 The allowance for funds used during construction ("AFUDC") is a non-cash credit to income which 
represents the estimated cost of funds used to finance the construction of utility plant. AFUDC is applied to 
construction projects requiring more than one month to complete. No AFUDC is applied to projects funded 
by customer advances for construction or contributions in aid of construction. AFUDC includes the net cost 
of borrowed funds and a rate of return on other funds when used, and is recovered through water rates as the 
utility plant is depreciated. The amount of AFUDC related to equity funds was $143 and $93 in 2016 and 
2015, respectively. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

   
 The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or 
less, which are not restricted for construction activity, to be cash equivalents. 

 
Accounts Receivable 
 

Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts is 
the Company’s best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in our existing accounts receivable, and 
is determined based on historical write-off experience and the aging of account balances. The Company 
reviews the allowance for doubtful accounts quarterly. When utility customers request extended payment 
terms, credit is extended based on regulatory guidelines and collateral is not required.  

 
Deferred Charges 

 
  Deferred bond issuance expenses are amortized over the life of the related issuance and are included 

in interest expense. 
 

Goodwill 
 

Goodwill represents the excess cost over the fair value of net tangible and identifiable intangible 
assets acquired through acquisitions. Goodwill is not amortized but is tested for impairment annually, or 
more often, if circumstances indicate a possible impairment may exist. When testing goodwill for impairment, 
we may assess qualitative factors, including macroeconomic conditions, industry and market considerations, 
cost factors, overall financial performance, and entity specific events, to determine whether it’s more likely 
than not that the fair value of our reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. Alternatively, we may bypass 
this qualitative assessment and perform a quantitative goodwill impairment test by determining the fair value 
of a reporting unit based on a discounted cash flow analysis. If we perform a quantitative test and determine 
that the reporting unit’s fair value is less than its carrying amount, we would determine the reporting unit’s 
implied fair value of its goodwill and compare it with the carrying amount of its goodwill to measure such 
impairment. The Company tested the goodwill attributable for its reporting unit for impairment as of July 31, 
2016, and concluded that the reporting unit’s estimated fair value exceeded its carrying amount, indicating 
that the Company’s goodwill was not impaired. 

 
Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI”) 

For the periods presented, the Company does not have any OCI and therefore, comprehensive 
income equals net income. In addition, there is no accumulated comprehensive income. 

Income Taxes  
 

The Company accounts for certain income and expense items in different time periods for financial 
reporting than for tax reporting purposes. Deferred income taxes are provided on the temporary differences 
between the tax basis of the assets and liabilities and the amounts at which they are carried in the financial 
statements. These deferred income taxes are based on the enacted tax rates expected to be in effect when 
such temporary differences are projected to reverse. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 
Income Taxes (Continued) 

 
The Company's earnings are included with those of the Parent and affiliated companies for purposes 

of filing a consolidated Federal income tax return. The allocation of the Federal income tax to the Company 
is computed on a stand-alone basis. The liability for Federal income taxes is remitted to the Parent. 
 

Investment tax credits have been deferred and are amortized over the estimated useful lives of the 
related properties. 
 

Judgment is required in evaluating the Company’s federal and state tax positions. Despite 
management’s belief that the Company’s tax return positions are fully supportable, the Company may 
establish reserves when it believes that certain tax positions are likely to be challenged and it may not fully 
prevail in these challenges. When reserves are established, the associated interest and penalties are recorded as 
a component of the Company’s income tax provision.   

 

 Customers' Advances for Construction 
 

 Water mains or, in some instances, cash advances to reimburse the Company its costs to construct water 
mains, are contributed to the Company by customers, real estate developers and builders in order to extend water 
service to their properties. The value of these contributions is recorded as customers’ advances for construction. 
The Company makes refunds on these advances over a specific period of time based on operating revenues related 
to the main or as new customers are connected to and take service from the main. After all refunds are made, any 
remaining balance is transferred to contributions in aid of construction. Customers’ advances for construction 
non-cash property has been received, generally from developers, of $2,105 in 2016 and $2,143 in 2015.  

 
Contributions in Aid of Construction 

  
Contributions in aid of construction include direct non-refundable contributions and the portion of 

customers' advances for construction that have become non-refundable. Contributions in aid of construction 
and customers’ advances for construction are deducted from the Company’s rate base for rate-making 
purposes, and therefore, no return is earned on contributed property.  The Company depreciates contributed 
property and amortizes contributions in aid of construction at the composite rate of the related property.  
Contributions in aid of construction non-cash property has been received, generally from developers, of $0 in 
2016 and $0 in 2015.  
 
Materials and Supplies 
 

Materials and supplies are stated at cost under the first-in, first-out method. 
 
Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

 
In August 2016, the FASB issued updated accounting guidance on the classification of certain cash 

receipts and cash payments in the statement of cash flows, which is intended to reduce diversity in practice in 
how certain transactions are classified in the statement of cash flows. This guidance is effective for fiscal 
years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2017, and early adoption is 
permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this new standard on its consolidated cash flow 
statement. 
 

In March 2016, the FASB issued updated accounting guidance on simplifying the accounting for 
share-based payments, which includes several aspects of the accounting for share-based payment transactions, 
including the income tax consequences, classification of awards as either equity or liabilities, and classification 
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements (Continued) 
 
on the statement of cash flows. The updated guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 
15, 2016, and interim periods within those fiscal years, with early adoption available. Once adopted, income 
tax benefits in excess of compensation costs or tax deficiencies for share-based compensation will be 
recorded to our income tax provision, instead of, as was done historically, to stockholder’s equity, which will 
impact our effective tax rate. Lastly, all tax-related cash flows resulting from share-based payments will be 
reported as operating activities on the statement of cash flows, a change from the historical requirement to 
present tax benefits as an inflow from financing activities and an outflow from operating activities. 

 
In February 2016, the FASB issued updated accounting guidance on accounting for leases, which 

requires lessees to establish a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet for all leases with 
terms longer than 12 months. For income statement purposes, leases will be classified as either operating or 
finance. Operating leases will result in straight-line expense while finance leases will result in a front-loaded 
expense pattern. The updated accounting guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 
2018, and interim periods within those fiscal years, with early adoption available. The Company is evaluating 
the requirements of the updated guidance to determine the impact of adoption.  Refer to Note 5 – 
Commitments and Contingencies for further information on the Company’s leases.   

 
In September 2015, the FASB issued updated accounting guidance on simplifying measurement-

period adjustments in business combinations, which eliminates the requirement that an acquirer in a business 
combination account for measurement-period adjustments retrospectively.  Instead, an acquirer will recognize 
a measurement-period adjustment during the period in which it determines the amount of the adjustment.  
The updated guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015, and interim periods 
within those fiscal years, with early adoption available.  The Company adopted the provisions of this 
accounting standard, as required on January 1, 2016, and it did not have an impact on its results of operations 
or financial position. 

 
In April 2015, the FASB issued updated accounting guidance on simplifying the presentation of debt 

issuance costs, which requires debt issuance costs to be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction 
from the carrying value of the associated debt liability.  Previously, debt issuance costs were presented in the 
balance sheet as a deferred charge.  The accounting standard is effective for reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2015, and will be applied retrospectively.  The Company adopted the provisions of this 
accounting standard as required on January 1, 2016.  The adoption of this standard was applied 
retrospectively and resulted in the reclassification as of December 31, 2015 of $1,710 from deferred charges 
and other assets, net to debt issuance costs, which is reported as a reduction to long-term debt.  

 
In May 2014, the FASB issued updated accounting guidance on recognizing revenue from contracts 

with customers, which outlines a single comprehensive model that an entity will apply to determine the 
measurement of revenue and timing of recognition.  The underlying principle is that an entity will recognize 
revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers at an amount that the entity expects to be 
entitled to in exchange for those goods or services.  The updated guidance also requires additional disclosure 
about the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, 
including significant judgments and changes in judgments and assets recognized from costs incurred to fulfill 
a contract.  Additionally, the accounting for contributions in aid of construction may be impacted by the 
updated accounting guidance if the contributions are determined to be in scope.  In July 2015, the FASB 
approved a one year deferral to the original effective date of this guidance.  The updated guidance is effective 
for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods therein, using either of the 
following transition methods:  (i) a full retrospective approach reflecting the application of the updated 
guidance in each prior reporting period, or (ii) a modified retrospective approach with the cumulative effect 
of initially adopting the updated guidance recognized through retained earnings at the date of adoption. 
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements (Continued) 

 
In 2016, the Company performed an evaluation of the requirements of the updated guidance and based on 
current interpretations of the updated guidance believes that the impact of adoption may not result in a 
material change in our measurement of revenue and timing of recognition if contributions in aid of 
construction is determined to not be in scope.  The Company continues to evaluate the impact of adoption if 
contributions in aid of construction are determined to be in scope.  Additionally, we plan to implement the 
updated guidance using the modified retrospective approach.        
 

 2. Utility Plant 
 
  Utility plant is composed of the following:  

 
3. Income Taxes  

 
   The provision for income taxes is composed of the following:  

          

  
 
 

 
 

December 31, Approximate range 
2016 2015   of useful lives

Utility plant in service

     Mains and accessories 126,752$     120,748$     47 years

     Services, hydrants, treatment 

          plants and reservoirs 87,884         81,994         14 to 83 years

     Operations structures and water tanks 13,879         13,731         32 to 62 years

     Miscellaneous pumping and

          purification equipment 20,145         16,986         22 to 67 years

     Meters, data processing, transportation

          and operating equipment 50,208         47,232         6 to 38 years

     Land and other non-depreciable assets 7,226          5,807          -

Utility plant in service 306,094       286,498       

Utility construction work in progress 1,595          1,675          

Net utility plant acquisition adjustment (1,637)         (1,670)         2 to 29 years

Total utility plant 306,052       286,503       

Accumulated depreciation (70,839) (65,406)

Utility plant, net of accumulated depreciation 235,213$     221,097$     

2016 2015
Current 4,152$       3,657$       

Deferred 86             289           

Total federal income tax expense 4,238$       3,946$       

Year ended December 31,
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3. Income Taxes (Continued) 
 
 The statutory Federal tax rate is 35% for 2016 and 2015. The Company does not pay New Jersey state taxes; 
however, it does pay gross receipts and franchise taxes at a rate of 14% of taxable gross receipts, and are recorded 
in the taxes other than income taxes on the income statement.  
  

The reasons for the differences between amounts computed by applying the statutory Federal 
income tax rate to income before income tax expense are as follows: 

 

 
 
 
 
The tax effects of temporary differences between book and tax accounting that give rise to the 

deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows: 
 

 
 

As of December 31, 2016, the Parent’s Federal income tax returns for all years through 2011 have 
been closed. For Federal income tax purposes, tax years 2012 through 2016 remain open for examination.  

 

Year ended December 31,

2016 2015

Computed Federal tax expense at  statutory rate 4,220$       4,028$       

Amortization of investment tax credits (54)            (54)            

Stock-based compensation (7)             (2)             

Other, net 79             (26)            

Actual income tax expense 4,238$       3,946$       

December 31,

2016 2015

Deferred tax assets:

  Customers' advances for construction 3,600$       3,600$       

  Deferred taxes associated with the gross-up  

    of revenues necessary to recover, in rates 126           136           

  Total deferred tax assets 3,726        3,736        

Deferred tax liabilities:

  Utility plant, principally due to depreciation 

    and differences in the basis of fixed assets

    due to variation in tax and book accounting 27,271       27,023       

  Costs deducted for tax but not expensed

    for books, principally accrued expenses

    and bad debt reserves (38)            71             

  Investment tax credit (1)             53             

  Other 176           157           

  Total deferred tax liabilities 27,408       27,304       

  Net deferred tax liability 23,682$     23,568$     
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4. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities 

 

  Regulatory assets represent costs that are expected to be fully recovered in future rates.  
 

 The portion of the regulatory asset related to rate case filing expenses represents the costs associated 
with filing for rate increases that are deferred and amortized over 24 months.  

 
 The portion of the regulatory asset related to tank painting represents the costs that were incurred by 
the Company and are currently being recovered in rates at $300 per year.  

  
 The portion of the regulatory asset related to radium treatment represents the costs incurred by the 
Company for treatment of certain wells in order to be in compliance with environmental regulations. These 
radium treatment costs were deferred as incurred and were recognized in rates over 2 years.   This regulatory 
asset was fully amortized in 2016.  

 
The AFUDC is the income tax gross up of the equity portion of AFUDC and is amortized over the 

life of the related capital asset.  
 

 The balance of the regulatory asset related to purchased waste water treatment represents the under-
recovery of sewer service in rates for the calendar year ending 2016 and 2015. As of December 31, 2016, a 
purchased sewer treatment adjustment clause had been filed and approved by the NJBPU for both the 
Wallkill and Maxim Wastewater divisions.  Rates are effective January 1, 2017.   
 
 The portion of the regulatory asset related to Wallkill purchased water treatment represents the over-
recovery of sewer service in rates in the amount of $5 in 2016 and the under-recovery of $11 in 2015.  The 
$11 deferral related to 2015 will be amortized over 12 months.   

     
  The portion of the regulatory asset related to Maxim purchased wastewater treatment represents the 

under-recovery of sewer service in rates in the amount of $56 in 2016 and the over-recovery of $29 in 2015.  
The $29 deferral related to 2015 will be amortized over 12 months.   

 
The regulatory asset for accrued vacation represents costs that would otherwise be charged to 

operations and maintenance expense for vacation that is earned by employees, which is recovered as a cost of 
service. 
 
 A deferral for bad debt and collection costs was set up by the Company in 2012 to capture the costs 
associated with collecting some overdue accounts. The total amount deferred on the books of the Company 
was $91 in 2014. The balance is currently being amortized over a 5 year period.  

December 31,
2016 2015

Rate case filing expenses 185$           148$         

Tank painting 829 644

Radium treatment 0 35

AFUDC  210 165

Purchased waste water treatment 33 53

Accrued vacation 90 97

Deferred bad debt and collection costs 49 67

Regulatory assets 1,396$        1,209$       
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4. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities (Continued) 

 

 

  Regulatory liabilities represent costs to be refunded to customers in future rates or amounts 
recovered from customers in advance of incurring the costs.   

 
 Items giving rise to a portion of deferred Federal income taxes related to certain differences between 
tax and book depreciation expense are recognized in the rate setting process on a cash or flow-through basis 
and will be refunded to customers as they reverse.  

 
 Utility plant retirement costs represent amounts recovered through rates during the life of the 
associated asset and before costs are incurred.   
 

 
5. Commitments and Contingencies 
 

 Rent expense was $12 and $10 for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, and is 
included in operating expenses. Future minimum rental payments are $9 in 2017, $6 in 2018, $6 in 2019, $5 in 
2020, and $2 in 2021 and $0 thereafter.  

 
 Purchased water was $ 1,164 and $1,250 for the calendar year ending 2016 and 2015, respectively. 
The Company has commitments to purchase water with minimums of $791 in 2017, $791 in 2018, $791 in 
2019, $791 in 2020, $791 in 2021 and $791 thereafter.  

  
 In 2007, the Company entered into service agreements for a 20 year term for the removal of radium 
present in two wells in its water system. Additional service agreements were signed in 2008 and one in 2009 
to commence treatment on two additional wells for 20 year terms each. The Company has a contractual 
obligation for the use of treatment equipment and media used to reduce radium concentrations from certain 
wells in its water system. The future contractual cash obligation related to this equipment is $796 in 2017, 
$796 in 2018, $796 in 2019, $796 in 2020, $796 in 2021 and $5,715 thereafter. 

 
 The Company is routinely involved in condemnation procedures and legal matters during the 
ordinary course of business. Although the results of legal proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, 
there are no pending legal proceedings to which the Company is a party or to which any of its properties is 
the subject that are material or are expected to have a material effect on the Company’s financial position, 
results of operations, or cash flows. 

 

2016 2015

Income tax 359$           388$         

Utility plant retirement costs 3,222          2,929        

Regulatory liabilities 3,581$        3,317$       

December 31,
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6. Long-term Debt and Loans Payable  
 
 The long-term debt and loans outstanding as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:  
 

Long Term Long Term

Debt Debt 

Including Including

Current Current

Issue Mature Original % Portion at % Portion at

Issuer Name Series Date Date Amount Rate December 31, Rate December 31,

12/31/2016 12/31/2015

GE Finanial Assurance  K 11/21/1995 11/1/2025 7,500$        8.14% -$                8.14% 7,500$                 

New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust  L 1/1/2000 11/1/2020 1,880          2.60% 457                 5.38% 554                      

New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust L 1/1/2000 11/1/2020 1,594          0.00% 342                 0.00% 429                      

New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust P 11/04/2004 8/01/2024 1,300          4.26% 615                 5.05% 615                      

New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust Q 11/04/2004 8/01/2024 1,135          0.00% 483                 0.00% 542                      

Mutual Of Omaha R 12/23/2004 12/01/2019 5,000          5.14% 5,000              5.14% 5,000                   

Mutual Of Omaha S 12/15/2006 12/15/2036 6,000          6.23% 6,000              6.23% 6,000                   

United of Omaha Life Insurance T 12/12/2007 12/12/2037 3,800          5.80% 3,800              5.80% 3,800                   

New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust U 11/6/2008 8/1/2028 985             4.10% 660                 5.15% 770                      

New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust V 11/6/2008 8/1/2028 971             0.00% 481                 0.00% 532                      

New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust W 12/2/2009 8/1/2029 295             4.08% 230                 4.20% 245                      

New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust X 12/2/2009 8/1/2029 294             0.00% 194                 0.00% 209                      

New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust Y 3/1/2010 8/1/2029 230             4.07% 170                 4.21% 180                      

New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust Z 3/1/2010 8/1/2029 236             0.00% 156                 0.00% 168                      

New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust AA 12/1/2010 8/1/2030 430             4.03% 345                 3.89% 365                      

New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust BB 10/1/2010 8/1/2030 213             0.00% 151                 0.00% 162                      

New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust DD 3/28/2012 8/1/2031 855             0.00% 637                 0.00% 681                      

New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust CC 5/3/2012 8/1/2031 780             4.66% 675                 4.47% 705                      

Aqua America, Inc. 5/20/2008 5/20/2016 3,465          5.40% -                  5.40% 3,465                   

Aqua America, Inc. 5/20/2008 5/20/2017 3,465          5.40% -                  5.40% 3,465                   

Aqua America, Inc. 5/20/2008 5/20/2021 1,485          5.40% 1,485              5.40% 1,485                   

Aqua America, Inc. 5/20/2008 5/20/2022 1,485          5.40% 1,485              5.40% 1,485                   

Aqua America, Inc. 6/24/2010 6/24/2028 6,740          5.22% 6,740              5.22% 6,740                   

Aqua America, Inc. 6/14/2012 6/14/2027 11,675        3.57% 11,675            3.57% 11,675                 

Aqua America, Inc. 2/28/2007 2/28/2037 67               5.85% 67                   5.85% -                      

Aqua America, Inc. 6/24/2010 6/24/2021 8,480          4.62% 8,480              4.62% -                      

Aqua America, Inc. 6/24/2010 6/24/2024 5,904          4.83% 5,904              4.83% -                      

Aqua America, Inc. 5/20/2015 5/20/2030 7,549          3.59% 7,549              3.59% -                      

Total 83,813$      63,781$          56,772$               
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6. Long-term Debt and Loans Payable (Continued) 
 

 Annual sinking fund payments are required for issues of First Mortgage Bonds. During the next five 
years, the following debt maturities, including sinking funds, are due: 

 

 
The mortgage indenture as supplemented restricts the ability of the Company to declare dividends 

with respect to certain issues of the First Mortgage Bonds. As of December 31, 2016, approximately $48,368 
of reinvested earnings was free of such restrictions. The Company’s loan agreements contain restrictions on 
minimum net assets. As of December 31, 2016 there were restrictions on $51,163 in net assets of the total net 
assets $82,400.  The Company was in compliance with all applicable covenants as of December 31, 2016.   

 
In 2016, the Company entered into a debt agreement with the Parent to borrow $15,070 at a 

weighted average of 3.83%.  The proceeds from the new debt were used to pay down $7,500 of existing debt.  
The debt obligations are unsecured and are due and payable between 2021 and 2037.   

 

 At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company had unsecured short-term lines of credit available 
totaling $6,500 in both years. Funds borrowed under these lines are classified as loans payable and are used 
primarily for temporary financing of utility plant additions. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, funds 
borrowed under these short-term lines of credit were $0. The average borrowing under the lines was $0 
during 2016 and 2015. The maximum amount outstanding at the end of any one month was $0 for 2016 and 
2015.  

 
7. Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
 

 The carrying amount of current assets and liabilities that are considered financial instruments 
approximates their fair values as of the dates presented. The carrying amount of the Company's long-term 
debt, including current portion, as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 is $63,781 and $56,773, respectively. The 
estimated fair value of the Company's long-term debt as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 is $69,187 and 
$62,986 respectively. The fair value of long-term debt has been determined by discounting the future cash 
flows using current market interest rates for similar financial instruments of the same duration. 

 
 

First Mortgage Bonds secured by utility plant: 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 Thereafter

Non-interest bearing 192$      188$      191$      190$      189$      1,153$   

1.00% to 1.99% Series, due 2020 196       194       194       201       14         -        

4.00% to 4.99% Series, due 2029 to 2031 135       200       201       206       220       1,733     

5.00% to 5.99% Series, due 2019 to 2037 -        -        5,000     -        -        3,800     

6.00% to 6.99% Series, due 2036 -        -        -        -        -        6,000     

Total First Mortgage Bonds 523       582       5,586     597       423       12,686   

Unsecured affiliate debt:

4.62% Series, due 2021 -        -        -        -        -        8,480     

4.83% Series, due 2024 -        -        -        -        -        5,904     

5.40% Series, due 2021 -        -        -        -        -        1,485     

5.40% Series, due 2022 -        -        -        -        -        1,485     

5.22% Series, due 2028 -        -        -        -        -        6,740     

3.57% Series, due 2027 -        -        -        -        -        11,675   

5.82% Series due 2037 -        -        -        -        -        67         

3.59% Series due 2030 -        -        -        -        -        7,549     

Total 523$      582$      5,586$   597$      423$      56,071$ 
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8. Pension Benefits  
 

The Company participates in a noncontributory qualified defined benefit pension plan sponsored by 
the Parent covering non-union employees hired prior to April 1, 2003 and select union employees. The 
eligibility of union employees is determined by the collective bargaining agreements covering those 
employees. Benefits under the plan are based on the participant's average compensation, defined as the 
beginning-of-year base rate of pay of the five consecutive years producing the highest average pay multiplied 
by the years of credited service not to exceed 35 years.  

In August 2014, the Parent announced changes to the way it will provide future retirement benefits to 
employees acquired through a prior acquisition. Effective January 1, 2015, the Parent will provide future 
retirement benefits for these employees through its defined contribution plan. As a result, no further service 
will be considered in future accruals in the qualified defined benefit pension plan after December 31, 2014.  

Effective July 1, 2015, the Parent added a permanent lump sum option to the form of benefit 
payments offered to participants of the qualified defined benefit pension plan upon retirement or 
termination. The plan paid $5,329 during the second half of 2015 to participants who elected this option and 
$9,990 during 2016.    

The funding amount for the Aqua America, Inc. Retirement Income Plan is determined each year 
based on the recommendation of management and subject to approval by the Parent’s Retirement and 
Employee Benefits Committee. The funding amount will be an amount greater than or equal to the minimum 
required contribution and less than or equal to the maximum tax deductible contribution. The Company 
made cash contributions to the Parent’s plan of $6 in 2016 and $39 in 2015. 

The Company’s policy is to recognize net periodic pension cost based on amounts determined by an 
independent actuary. Information regarding accumulated and projected benefit obligations is not prepared at 
the subsidiary level. The Company recorded pension expense of $106 and $6 for 2016 and 2015, respectively. 

 
9. Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions 
 

 The Company participates in a postretirement benefit plan sponsored by the Parent that provides 
medical and prescription drug benefits, or a cash contribution towards such benefits, and life insurance 
benefits. Employees may become eligible for these benefits after age 55 if they have completed at least twenty 
years of service or attaining age 62 with five years of service or age plus service greater than or equal to 95. 
Pre-65 plan benefits are self-insured by the Parent. Post-65 retirees who are eligible for Medicare receive 
Company contributions in the form of a premium reimbursement account.    

 

The Company’s funding policy is to contribute the lower of the other postretirement benefits cost or 
the maximum amount allowed by the Internal Revenue Code. The Company recorded postretirement 
benefits other than pension credits of $11 and $19 for 2016 and 2015, respectively. The Company funded 
postretirement benefits other than pensions of $0 in 2016 and $0 in 2015. The Company’s policy is to 
recognize other postretirement benefit cost based on amounts determined by an independent actuary. 
Information regarding accumulated and projected benefit obligations is not prepared at the subsidiary level.   
 
 The Parent has 401(k) savings plans that cover substantially all employees. The Company makes 
matching contributions that are invested in Aqua America, Inc. common stock based on a percentage of an 
employee’s contribution, subject to certain limitations. The portion of the Company’s contribution, recorded 
as compensation expense, is $213 and $218 for 2016 and 2015, respectively. 

 
10. Employee Stock and Incentive Plan  
 

  The Company’s employees participate in an Equity Compensation Plan sponsored by the Parent. 
Under the Aqua America, Inc. 2009 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan, as approved by the Parent’s 
shareholders to replace the 2004 Equity Compensation Plan, stock options, stock units, stock awards, stock 
appreciation rights, dividend equivalents, and other stock-based awards may be granted to the  
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10. Employee Stock and Incentive Plan (Continued) 

 
Company’s employees, non-employee directors, and consultants and advisors equal to the market price of the 
stock on the day of the grant.  

 
 Stock options are based upon the common stock of the Parent. Options are exercisable in installments 
of 33% annually, starting one year from the date of the grant and expire 10 years from the date of the grant. The 
Parent accounts for stock-based compensation using fair value. The fair value of each stock option is amortized 
into compensation expense on a straight-line basis over their respective 36 month vesting period, net of 
estimated forfeitures. Compensation expense recognized by the Parent is allocated to its subsidiaries based on 
actual employee costs. Since the Company is not obligated to reimburse the Parent for stock-based 
compensation costs incurred, the Company records these liabilities resulting from compensation costs to paid-in 
capital.  

 
           There were no stock options granted during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.  
   

 For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company’s stock-based compensation related to stock 
options resulted in the following:  operations and maintenance expense of $0 and recorded an income tax 
benefit of $7.  For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company’s stock-based compensation related to 
stock options resulted in the following: operations and maintenance expense of $0 and recorded an income tax 
benefit of $2. 

 
          Restricted stock awards provide the grantee with the rights of a shareholder, including the right to 
receive dividends and to vote such shares, but not the right to sell or otherwise transfer the shares during the 
restriction period. Restricted stock awards result in compensation expense which is equal to the fair market 
value of the stock on the date of the grant and is amortized ratably over the restriction period.  For the years 
ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, there was no restricted stock based compensation related to restricted 
stock awards.   

 
          During 2016 and 2015, the Company granted performance share units (“PSU”). A PSU represents the 
right to receive a share of the Parent’s common stock if specified performance goals are met over the three year 
performance period specified in the grant. The fair value of each PSU grant is amortized into compensation 
expense on a straight-line basis over their respective 36 month vesting period. During the year ended December 
31, 2016, the Company recorded stock based compensation related to PSUs as a component of operations and 
maintenance expense of $40, and recorded an income tax benefit of $14. During the year ended December 31, 
2015, the Company recorded stock-based compensation related to PSUs as a component of operations and 
maintenance expense of $80, and recorded an income tax benefit of $28. The Company assumes that forfeitures 
will be minimal, and recognizes forfeitures as they occur, which results in a reduction in compensation expense.  

 
11. Acquisitions 

 
   In 2016, the Company acquired the water utility assets of Byram and Cliffside Park for $328 and $52, 

respectively.  Operating revenue included in the financial statements related to the acquisitions for 2016 were 
$51 and $3, respectively.   Also in 2016, the Company acquired the sewer assets of Oakwood Village for 
$1,304.  Operating revenue included in the financial statements related to the acquisitions for 2016 were $1.  
The acquisitions were all funded by equity contributions from Parent.   

    
  In 2015, the Company acquired the water utility assets of Seaview Harbor Water Company for $227.  
Operating revenue included in the financial statements related to the acquisition for 2016 and 2015 were $104 
and $87, respectively.   The acquisition was funded by an equity contribution from Parent.   
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12. Water and Wastewater Rates 

 
 In January 2016, the Company filed an application with the NJBPU requesting a $2,537 or 6.69% 
increase in annual water revenues.  In addition, the Company filed a Distribution System Improvement 
Charge (“DSIC”) Foundational Filing.   Effective July 29, 2016, the NJBPU approved the rate filing designed 
to increase the Company’s annual water revenues by $200 or .51%.  The Company’s DSIC Foundational 
Filing was also approved with an annual DSIC revenue requirement amount of $1,952 or 5%.  

 
13. Affiliated Company Transactions  

 
 The Company has service agreements with the Parent and subsidiaries of the Parent (“other 
affiliates”). The types of services rendered between these entities relate to general supervision and 
administrative functions, long-range planning, tax, accounting, financing, engineering, legal and other 
specialized support. Expenditures recorded for these services by the Parent amounted to approximately 
$3,934 and $3,428 for 2016 and 2015, respectively. 

 
 Amounts owed to the Parent and other affiliates by the Company amounted to $4,834 and $959 at 
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Amounts owed to the Parent and other affiliates are reflected in 
the accompanying balance sheet. 

 
 The Company made non-cash refunds of equity contributions to the Parent of $6,615 in 2016 and 
received non-cash equity contributions from the Parent of $4,486 in 2015.  Both are reported on the 
Statement of Common Stockholder’s Equity. In 2015, the non-cash equity contributions relate to the 
contribution by the Parent for the settlement of certain net inter-company payables due to the Parent or 
subsidiary of the Parent.  

 
 


